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Directors’ Report 

The Directors present their annual report on the affairs of IHS Towers NG Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries, Tower Infrastructure 
Company Limited and IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V. (together referred to as the "Group"), with the audited financial statements for 
the year ended 31 December 2017, to the members of the Company. This report discloses the state of the Company and the Group. 
 

Incorporation and Address 

The Company was incorporated as a private limited liability Company in 2002. The registered address of the Company is 9 Alfred Rewane Road, 
Ikoyi, Lagos. 

 

Principal Activities 

The Company is a telecom infrastructure service provider engaged in turnkey infrastructure deployment (construction of tower and tower 
equipment) and infrastructure sharing and leasing (colocation services). 

 

Results and Dividends 

The Group and Company’s results for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out on page 8. The summarized results are presented below. 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Revenue  22,892,169   19,706,993   17,519,750   15,465,605  
Operating profit/(loss)  5,740,077   (7,014,876)  2,947,404   (4,988,836) 
Total comprehensive loss for the year  (12,165,949)   (41,562,614)  (14,775,613)  (39,602,037) 

 
The Directors did not recommend the payment of dividend in the current and prior year. 
 

Directors’ Shareholding 

The Directors who served during the year and their interest in the shares of the Company for the purposes of sections 275 and 276 of the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act. were as follows: 
 
31-Dec-2017 
 

Director  
 

Number of ordinary 
shares of 50k each  

Mohamad Darwish  Nil  
David Ordman  Nil  
Jimoh Umoru  Nil  

 
 
The Directors of the Company were the same as at 31 December 2016. 

 

Analysis of Shareholding 

The shareholding structure of the Company as at 31 December 2017 is as follows:  

 
31 December 2017 
 

 Number of Ordinary shares  
of 50k each 

Amount 
₦ 

% Holding 

IHS Netherlands NG2 B. V.   70,772,329   35,386,164  100.00% 
IHS Nigeria Limited   1   1  0.00% 

   70,772,330   35,386,165  100.00% 

 
The shareholding structure of the Company was the same as at 31 December 2016. 

 

Directors’ Interest in Contracts  

None of the Directors has notified the Company for the purpose of section 277 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of their direct or indirect 
interest in contracts or proposed contracts with the Company during the year. 
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Statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 

 
  Group Company 

  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 Note ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
      

Revenue 5   22,892,169   19,706,993   17,519,750   15,465,605  

Cost of sales 6   (10,863,617)  (15,742,239)  (8,229,763)  (10,519,525) 

Gross profit    12,028,552   3,964,754   9,289,987   4,964,080  

      

Administrative expenses 7   (6,648,960)  (10,988,658)  (6,469,812)  (9.943,944) 

Other income  9   360,485   9,028   127,229   9,028  

Operating profit/(loss)   5,740,077   (7,014,876)  2,947,404   (4,988,836) 

      
Finance income 10  2,762,626   152,169   2,762,626   152,169  

Finance costs 11  (22,898,090)  (39,135,111)  (23,144,144)  (39,207,908) 

Fair value through profit or loss 12  3,761,192   3,379,640   3,761,192   3,379,640  

Foreign exchange (loss)/gain 13  (1,254,699)  47,886   (1,076,734)  47,886  

Loss before taxation   (11,888,894)   (42,570,292)  (14,749,656)  (40,617,049) 

      

Tax (expense)/credit 27  (454,968)  721,507   (25,957)  1,015,012  

      

Loss for the year   (12,343,862)   (41,848,785)  (14,775,613)  (39,602,037) 

      

Attributable to:      
Owners of the parent   (12,343,862)   (41,848,785)  (14,775,613)  (39,602,037) 

   (12,343,862)   (41,848,785)  (14,775,613) (39,602,037) 

Other comprehensive income:      

      

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss      
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 31  177,913   286,171   -     -    

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax   177,913   286,171   -     -    

      

Attributable to:      
Owners of the parent   177,913   286,171   -     -    

   177,913   286,171   -     -    

      

Total comprehensive loss for the year   (12,165,949)   (41,562,614)  (14,775,613)  (39,602,037) 

      

Attributable to:      

Owners of the parent   (12,165,949)   (41,562,614)  (14,775,613)  (39,602,037) 

   (12,165,949)   (41,562,614)  (14,775,613)  (39,602,037) 

 
 
The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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Statements of changes in equity 

 
Group  

Share 
capital  

Share 
premium 

*Other capital 
reserves 

Retained 
earnings/(losses) 

Total 

   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000  

       

Balance at 1 January 2016   35,386   17,274,663   408,794   (30,684,511)  (12,965,668) 

Loss for the year   -     -     -     (41,848,785)  (41,848,785) 

Other comprehensive income for the year   -     -     286,171   -     286,171  

Transactions with owners:       
Related party loan fair value adjustment (net of taxes)   -     -     2,156,900   -     2,156,900  

Reclassification   -     -     (408,794)  408,794   -    

Balance at 31 December 2016   35,386   17,274,663   2,443,071   (72,124,502)  (52,371,382) 

       

Balance at 1 January 2017   35,386   17,274,663   2,443,071   (72,124,502)  (52,371,382) 

Loss for the year   -     -     -     (12,343,862)   (12,343,862)  

Other comprehensive income for the year   -     -     177,913   -     177,913  

Balance at 31 December 2017   35,386   17,274,663   2,620,984   (84,468,364)  (64,537,331) 

 
 
 
 
Company  

Share 
capital  

Share 
premium 

*Other capital 
reserves 

Retained 
earnings/(losses) 

Total 

   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000  

       

Balance at 1 January 2016   35,386   17,274,663   408,794   (28,970,185)  (11,251,342) 

Loss for the year   -     -     -     (39,602,037)  (39,602,037) 

Transactions with owners:       
Related party loan fair value adjustment (net of taxes)   -     -     2,156,900   -     2,156,900  

Reclassification   -     -     (408,794)  408,794   -    

Balance at 31 December 2016   35,386   17,274,663   2,156,900   (68,163,428)  (48,696,479) 

       

Balance at 1 January 2017   35,386   17,274,663   2,156,900   (68,163,428)  (48,696,479) 

Loss for the year   -     -     -     (14,775,613)  (14,775,613) 

Balance at 31 December 2017   35,386   17,274,663   2,156,900   (82,939,041)  (63,472,092) 

 
 
* Other capital reserves are shown in note 31 

 

 

 
The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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Statements of cash flows 

 
  Group Company 

  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
Cash flows from operating activities Note ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
      

Cash generated from operations 29  13,383,922  8,841,334  12,969,968   7,937,589  

Income taxes paid 27  (281,895)  (60,870)  -     -    

Payment for land lease 17  (955,943)  (509,983)  (955,943)  (509,983) 

Net cash flows generated from operating activities  12,146,084 8,270,481 12,014,025 7,427,606 

      

Cash flows from investing activities      
Acquisition of property plant and equipment 14  (1,282,264)  (1,784,323)  (1,282,264)  (1,784,323) 

Proceeds from disposal of property plant and equipment 14  252   18,220   252   18,220  

Acquisition of intangible assets 15  (48,905)  (20,424)  (48,905)  (20,424) 

Restricted cash deposits 20 (1,007,429) - (1,007,429) - 

Insurance claim received 9 960 5,357 960 5,357 

Finance income received 10  64,276   152,169   64,276   152,169  

Net cash used in investing activities   (2,273,110) (1,629,001) (2,273,110)  (1,629,001) 

      

Cash flows from financing activities      
Loan receipts - related party 28  -     77,587,202   -     77,587,202  

Transaction costs paid 28  (112,670)  (2,003,114)  (112,670)  (2,003,114) 

Principal paid - related party 28  -     -     -     (72,265,175) 

Interest paid - related party 28  (6,979,877)  -     (7,333,843)  (6,704,407) 

Principal paid - external borrowing 24  -     (72,265,175)  -     -    

Interest paid - external borrowing 24  (334,331)  (7,531,984)  -     -    

Profits earned on non-deliverable forwards 19  1,463,196   -     1,463,196   -    

Margin deposits paid 20  (1,319,642)  -     (1,319,642)  -    

Margin deposits received 20  486,951   -     486,951   -    

Premiums paid on non-deliverable forwards 11  (60,013)  -     (60,013)  -    

Loan premium on early redemption 11  -     (3,608,023)  -     (3,608,023) 

Loss on foreign currency purchase  (618,656) - (618,656) - 

Net cash used in financing activities   (7,475,042)  (7,821,094)  (7,494,677)  (6,993,517) 

      

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   2,397,932   (1,179,614)  2,246,238   (1,194,912) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year   2,931,183   4,105,371   2,915,885   4,105,371  

Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash   59,487   5,426   29,519   5,426  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 21  5,388,602   2,931,183   5,191,642   2,915,885  

 
 
 
The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

1. General information 

These financial statements are the financial statements of IHS Towers NG Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries, Tower 
Infrastructure Company Limited and IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V. (together referred to as the "Group"). 

IHS Towers NG Limited (the "Company") was incorporated in Nigeria under the Companies and Allied Matters Act in 2002 but did not 
commence operations until November 2005. The registered address of the Company is 9 Alfred Rewane Road, Ikoyi, Lagos. 

The principal activities of the Group continues to be the managing and infrastructure sharing and leasing (colocation) of telecommunications 
infrastructure to telecommunications and other service providers. 

IHS Towers NG Limited is a subsidiary of IHS Netherlands NG2 B.V. and controlled by IHS Holding Limited (ultimate parent). IHS Holding 
Limited has the right to appoint Board members, controls the day to day activities and major financial decisions of IHS Towers NG Limited. 

 

1.1. Going concern 

The Directors have reasonable expectations that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future. The results of management review of the Company’s market, operations and financial performance in the past 12 months and a 
forecast for the next few years provides a sound basis for the appropriateness of using the going concern assumption in the preparation of 
the Company’s financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2017. The following further form the basis of management's use of 
going concern:                                                                                       

• The market is growing and the business continues to retain its share of the overall market. 

• The business has grown its revenues, gross profit margins, EBITDA margins and operational cash flows in the last 12 months. 

• The business maintains a high level of business ethics and regulatory compliance and there is no indication of any foreseeable 
adverse change in the regulatory landscape. 

• The business has a strong investor base that has the ability and willingness to inject additional funding where necessary. 

 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been 
consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.  

 

2.1. Basis of preparation 

The consolidated and separate financial statements comprise the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
statements of financial position, the statements of changes in equity, the statements of cash flows, and the notes, comprising of a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

Compliance with IFRS 

The consolidated and separate financial statements of IHS Towers NG Limited have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) applicable to companies 
reporting under IFRS. The financial statements comply with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). 

Historical cost convention 

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value. 

Functional currency 

The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in the functional currency, Nigerian Naira (₦), rounded to the nearest 
thousands, except where otherwise stated. 

Accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the 
Directors to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant 
impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions changed.  

The Directors believe that the underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s financial statements therefore present the 
financial position and results fairly.The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4. 

The consolidated and separate financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 April 2018. 
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2.1.1. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 

a) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Group 

A number of new or amended standards became effective in the current year. Those that are applicable to the Group are as follows: 

i. Disclosure initiative: Amendments to IAS 7. 

ii. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses – Amendments to IAS 12. 

The amendments to IAS 7 require disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (see note 30). The Group did not 
have to change its accounting policies and disclosures, or make retrospective adjustments as there were no transactions that would 
be affected by these new amendments. 

b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted by the Group 

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2017 reporting 
periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new standards and 
interpretations is set out below: 

Title of standard IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 

Nature of change IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments,’ addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial 
assets and financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model 
for financial assets. 

Impact The Group has reviewed the impact of this new standard and has concluded that the impact is limited. 

IFRS 9 contains three classification categories: ‘measured at amortised cost’, ‘fair value through other 
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) and ‘fair value through profit and loss’ (FVTPL). The standard 
eliminates the existing IAS 39 categories: ‘loans and receivables’, ‘held to maturity’ and ‘available-for-
sale’. For the Group, there is no significant change from the new classification requirement. 

The Group does not currently apply any hedge accounting so does not expect any impact from the new 
hedging rules. 

The Group does not expect any material impact on its impairment provisions under the new rules. 

The Group does not expect to be impacted by IFRS 9 renegotiation guidance, as the Group has not 
historically renegotiated borrowings. 

Date of adoption The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 

Title of standard IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

Nature of change IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” requires an entity to recognize revenue in an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for the transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers. IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for 
determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing revenue 
recognition guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contracts. 

The standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method, and the 
Group will apply the cumulative effect transition method at the date of initial application. Under the 
cumulative effect transition method, an entity applies the new standard as of the date of initial 
application, with no restatement of comparative period amounts. It records the cumulative effect of 
initially applying the new standard, which affects revenue and costs, as an adjustment to the opening 
balance of equity at the date of initial application. 

Impact The revenue to which the Group must apply this standard is generally limited to services revenue, 
certain power and fuel charges that are not leases and other fees charged to customers. Revenue from 
leases is not included in the scope of IFRS 15. 

The Group does not expect changes in the timing of revenue recognition to be material to its financial 
statements. The Group’s impact assessment has taken into account the following key factors: 

• Revenues from services will typically be recognized evenly over the period the services are 
provided as the services are a series of distinct services recognized over time. This is consistent 
with the current accounting policy. 

• Where payments for services include variable consideration (such as service level credits and other 
similar variable pricing terms that depend on events in future service periods) the Group has 
concluded that they should be allocated to each future service period and recognized when the 
variability is resolved. As such, changes to the transaction price arising from service credits and  
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2.1.1. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 

 similar items will not be anticipated, but recognized as a reduction in revenue in the relevant future 
service period. This is consistent with the current accounting policy. 

• Where multiple goods and services are provided to customers, the allocation of the transaction 
price will not be significantly different to the current allocation to components based on fair value 
and will not significantly affect the timing of revenues as the components (performance obligations) 
are typically performed and recognized over the same service period. 

Date of adoption The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.  

The Group intends to adopt the standard using the modified retrospective approach which means that 
the cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognized in retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and 
that comparatives will not be restated. 

Title of standard IFRS 16 Leases 

Nature of change IFRS 16 “Leases” was issued in January 2016. It specifies the recognition, measurement, presentation, 
and disclosure of leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to 
recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying 
asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16’s 
approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17. 

Impact The Group carries some assets on the consolidated statement of financial position in relation to land 
rental paid several years in advance. The Group expects the guidance to have a material impact on its 
consolidated statement of financial position due to the recording of the right of use assets and lease 
liabilities for leases in which it is a lessee and which it currently treats as operating leases. The Group 
also expects a material impact on its consolidated statement of income due to changes in both timing 
of recognition of costs as well as changes in income statement classification. This may have a further 
impact on its consolidated statement of cash flow. 

The Group continues to evaluate the impact of the new guidance.  

Date of adoption Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2019. The Group does not intend to 
adopt the standard before its effective date.  

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or 
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions. 

 

2.2. Consolidation 

a) Subsidiaries 

The consolidated financial statements include the financial information and results of the Company and those entities in which it has a 
controlling interest. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with 
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured 
entities) over which the Group has control. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. 
They are deconsolidated from the date the control ceases. Investments in entities that the Company does not control are accounted for 
using the equity or cost method, depending upon the Company’s ability to exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies. 
All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. 

 

b) Business Combinations 

For acquisitions that meet the definition of a business combination, the Group applies the acquisition method of accounting where assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at fair value at the date of each acquisition, and the results of operations are included with 
those of the Group from the dates of the respective acquisitions. Any excess of the purchase price paid by the Group over the amounts 
recognized for assets acquired and liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill and any acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred. 
The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share 
of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. 

The consideration transferred for the acquisition comprises the fair value of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred, equity interests issued 
by the Group and any contingent consideration. Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in 
the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing 
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions. 

If the Group gains control in a business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously 
held equity interest in the acquiree is re measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re measurement 
are recognized in the statement of income and comprehensive income. 
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2.3. Foreign currency translation 

a) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the Group's financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which 
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The Group’s financial statements are presented in Naira which is the Group’s functional 
currency. 
 

b) Existence of multiple official exchange rates 

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Central Bank of Nigeria introduced a new foreign exchange window, which includes 
the NAFEX (Nigerian Autonomous Foreign Exchange Rate Fixing). This has resulted in a situation where there are several different 
official exchange rates in the market, thereby requiring the Company to monitor and evaluate which exchange rate is most appropriate 
to apply in translating foreign currency transactions. 

Where multiple official exchange rates exist, the Group assesses the appropriate rate to use and takes into account relevant factors. 
In the case of translating foreign transactions, such factors include access to those rates in the future to meet payments or dividends. 
In determining whether it is appropriate to move from one official rate to another, the Group considers the available rates in official 
markets for settlement of transactions. Refer to note 4 for further information. 
 

c) Transactions and balances  

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Naira using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation 
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income within 'finance cost'. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented separately within 'foreign exchange gains or 
losses' in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

The Company translated their foreign currency transactions into the functional currency; Nigerian Naira, at the Central Bank of Nigeria 
(“CBN”) prevailing rate at the date of the transaction and translated monetary items and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
at the Nigerian Autonomous Foreign Exchange Fixing (“NAFEX”) rate at December 31, 2017. The CBN rate was between 303.4 and 
305.9 during the year and ended the year at 305.55. The NAFEX rate at 31 December 2017 was 360. Refer to note 4 for further 
information. 
 

d) Group companies 

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have 
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows: 

i. assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the reporting 
date; 

ii. income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this 
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which 
case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and 

iii. all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of borrowings, are 
taken to other comprehensive income. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as 
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.  

 

2.4. Revenue 

Revenue is derived from fees paid by customers for services from colocation business and its ancillary managed services. 

The colocation business involves the lease of space on owned and leased towers, which are shared by various operators and data service 
providers. Revenue is generated on towers either from anchor tenants (original tenants on towers) or colocation tenants (subsequent 
tenants) when they install equipment on towers. A portion of colocation arrangements for the rental of space on the towers and other 
assets on tower sites, on which the use of space is dependent, is within the scope of IAS 17 Leasing. A portion of colocation arrangements 
for the provision of services and energy charges is within the scope of IAS 18 Revenue as a provision of service. 

a) Colocation services revenue for which the Group is a lessor    

The portion of colocation revenues, for which the Group is the lessor, are treated as operating leases. Revenue from leasing arrangements, 
including fixed escalation clauses present in non-cancellable lease agreements is recognized on a straight-line basis over the current 
lease term of the related lease agreements, when collectability is reasonably assured. The duration of these lease arrangements is typically 
between 5 and 10 years. Escalation clauses tied to the Consumer Price Index (“CPI”) or other inflation based indices, are excluded from 
the straight-line calculation, however, any fixed increases are included. 
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2.4. Revenue (continued) 

a) Colocation services revenue for which the Group is a lessor (continued) 

Revenue is recognized in the accounting period in which the rental income is earned and services are rendered. Amounts billed or received 
for services prior to being earned are deferred and reflected in deferred revenue until the criteria for recognition have been met.  

 

b) Colocation services revenue and other managed services revenue 

Revenue from the sale of goods and services is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents 
amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of qualifying discounts, rebates and sales 
related taxes and income from the provision of technical services and agreements. Revenue is recognized when the amount of revenue 
can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity. 

The Group offers ancillary services to manage tenant operations of existing customers on a limited basis. Revenue is recognized in the 
accounting period in which the services are rendered by reference to the stage of completion based on the terms of each contract. Services 
revenues are derived under contracts or arrangements with customers that provide for billings either on a fixed price basis or a variable 
price basis, which includes factors such as time and expenses. Revenues are recognized as services are performed, and include estimates 
for percentage completed. Amounts billed or received for services prior to being earned are deferred and reflected in deferred revenue in 
the accompanying statement of financial position until the criteria for recognition have been met. 

 

2.5. Property, plant and equipment 

These are mainly base stations and other equipment that are used by the Group in its towers for providing managed and colocation 
services, or for administrative purposes. The assets are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Property plant and equipment under 
construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost can be measured reliably. On disposal or 
retirement of the asset, the carrying amount of the replaced asset is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit 
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred. 

Capital work-in-progress and freehold land is not depreciated. For capital work-in-progress, the attributable cost of each asset is 
transferred to the relevant asset category immediately the asset is ready for use and depreciated accordingly. Depreciation on all other 
assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their useful lives as follows: 

 Years 

Base station towers (including civil costs and overheads)   20 

Base station equipment (other equipment)   15 - 20 

Base station equipment (Alarms & batteries)   5 

Base station equipment (generators)   3 

Office Complex 40 

Furniture & fittings & office equipment      3 

Motor vehicles  4 

 

Assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting date. 

Where an indication of impairment exists, an asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss for the period. 

 

2.6. Intangible assets 

a) Licenses 

Separately acquired licenses are shown at historical cost. Licenses acquired in a business combination are recognized at fair value at the 
acquisition date. Licenses have a finite useful life determined primarily by reference to the term of the license and are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortization. Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 3 - 15 years (2016: 
3 - 15 years). 
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2.6. Intangible assets (continued) 

b) Computer software  

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognized as expenses as incurred. Acquired computer software 
licenses are capitalized at the cost incurred to acquire and bring into use the software. Amortization is calculated using the straight-line 
method over their estimated useful lives of 3 - 5 years. 

 

2.7. Impairment of non-financial assets 

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently 
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by 
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash 
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment 
at the end of each reporting period. 

 

2.8. Long term advances 

This represents amount paid to suppliers/contractors in respect of projects related to capital expenditures or other advances which are 
recoverable and exceeding a period of 12 months.  

 

2.9. Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. Cost comprises direct materials costs and where applicable, 
direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost 
is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of 
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. If the carrying value exceeds net realizable amount, a write 
down is recognized. The write-down may be reversed in a subsequent period if the circumstances which caused it no longer to exist. In 
other instances where the net realizable value of an inventory item is not readily determinable, management assesses the age and the 
risk of obsolescence of such items in determining net realizable value of such item using an appropriate age/obsolescence factor model. 

 

2.10. Long term prepayments 

Pre-paid land rent 

Amount paid in respect of long-term rent is capitalized and amortised over the rental period.  

 

2.11. Financial assets 

2.11.1. Classification 

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables and fair value through profit and loss. The 
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its 
financial assets at initial recognition. 

a) Loans and receivables  

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified 
as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’, ‘amounts due from related parties’ and 
‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the statement of financial position. 

i. Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective 
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.  If collection 
is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets. 

The Group reviews trade receivables at least annually and when there is any indication that the receivables might be impaired. The 
Group has estimated the recoverable amount using models that require assumptions about future cash flows, cash flow dates and 
discount rates.  
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2.11. Financial assets (continued) 

2.11.1. Classification (continued) 

a) Loans and receivables (continued)  

ii. Amounts due from related parties  

These are amounts due from related parties for services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in 
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets; if not, they are 
presented as non-current assets.  

 
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at bank and in hand, funded forwards plus short-term deposits. Short-term deposits have 
a maturity of less than three months from the date of investment. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less. 
 

b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise of derivative financial instruments in the statement of financial 
position. Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value from an underlying price or index. A derivative instrument gives 
one party a contractual right to exchange financial assets and financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are 
potentially favorable or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavorable. Derivatives are initially 
recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the 
end of each reporting period with changes reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

i. Embedded derivative options 

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract. An 
embedded derivative causes some or all of the cashflows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according 
to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates or other variable 
(provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract). 

An embedded derivative is only separated and reported at fair value with gains and losses being recognized in the profit or loss 
component of the statement of comprehensive income when the following requirements are met: 

• where the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not clearly and closely related to those of the 
host contract; 

• the terms of the embedded derivative are the same as those of a stand-alone derivative; and 

• the combined contract is not held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss. 

The fair values of the options are determined using an option pricing model that is commonly used by market participants to value 
such options and makes maximum use of market inputs, relying as little as possible on the entity’s specific inputs and making 
reference to the fair value of similar instruments in the market. Thus, it is considered a level 2 financial instrument in the fair valuation 
hierarchy of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The resultant gains or losses are accounted for under fair value through profit or loss 
(note 12). 

ii. Non-deliverable forwards 

These are cash-settled, short-term non-deliverable forward contracts entered into by the Group for the purchase of an agreed upon 
notional amount of funds in foreign exchange at agreed future dates. The fair value at the end of each reporting period is based on 
the difference between the contract exchange rate and the spot exchange rate obtained from a regulated over-the-counter fixed 
income securities exchange at the relevant reporting date. The fair values are categorized as level 2 in the fair valuation hierarchy of 
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The related net fair value gain is included in finance income in note 10. 

The Group deposits between 5% to 10% of the underlying value of the non-deliverable forward contract as collateral to the bank that 
provides the contract. These deposits are held in a margin account which must be maintained at certain levels based on the 
cumulative gain or loss on the foreign exchange movements. The deposits are maintained separately as they do not form part of the 
initial investment and are reported as other receivables. 

 

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement 

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or 
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through 
profit or loss. 

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and 
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.   
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2.11. Financial assets (continued) 

2.11.2. Recognition and measurement (continued) 
 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently revalued at the end 
of the reporting period. The resulting gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

Non-deliverable forwards are measured at each month end based on spot NAFEX exchange rate obtained from FMDQ OTC securities 
exchange, this is the source that will be used by the bank (counter party) on the maturity of the contract. This implies that, on a monthly 
basis any fair value gain or loss on an individual contract will be charged to profit or loss and/or financial asset and financial liability as the 
case may be. 

 

2.11.3. Impairment of financial assets 

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial 
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective 
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss 
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably 
estimated.  

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists. The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is 
objective evidence of an impairment loss include: 

• significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor; 

• a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; 

• the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that 
the lender would not otherwise consider;  

• it becomes probable that the customer will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; 

• the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or  

• observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of asset since 
the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet financial assets be identified with the individual financial 
assets in the portfolio, including:  

i. adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio; and 
ii. national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio. 

 
For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized in the profit or loss. If 
a loan or receivable has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate 
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value 
using an observable market price. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring 
after the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognized 
impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

 

2.12. Financial liabilities 

2.12.1. Classification 

The Group's financial liabilities are classified at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and inclusive of 
directly attributable transaction costs. The Group's financial liabilities are borrowings, trade and other payables and amounts due to related 
parties. 

a) Borrowings  

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in the statement of 
income and comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the 
establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the 
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is 
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized 
over the period of the facility to which it relates. 

Day 1 gain or loss on below/above-market interest rate on related party loans are recognized within equity. 
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2.12. Financial liabilities (continued) 

2.12.1. Classification (continued) 

a) Borrowings (continued) 

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, 
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another 
party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as other income or finance costs. 

 
b) Trade payables 

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. 
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less.  If not, they are presented as non-current 
liabilities. Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. 

 
c) Amounts due to related parties 

These are amounts due to related parties for services received in the ordinary course of business. If payment is expected to transfer 
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current liabilities; if not, they are 
presented as non-current liabilities. 

   

2.13. Offsetting financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal 
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty. 

 

2.14. Derecognition of financial instruments 

All financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. Financial assets and liabilities are derecognized when the rights to receive 
cash flows from the investments or settle obligations have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership.  

 

2.15. Taxation 

a) Deferred tax  

Deferred tax is recognized, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax 
liability is settled.  

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
temporary differences can be utilised. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or 
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit 
or loss. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized on deductible temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, only to the extent that it 
is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the temporary 
difference can be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities 
and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable 
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis. 

 

b) Current tax 

Tax is recognized in the profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 
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2.15. Taxation (continued) 

b) Current tax (continued) 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the 
countries where the Group operates and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with 
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis 
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

Income tax expenses/credits is the aggregate of the charges or credits recognized in the profit and loss account in respect of current 
income tax, education tax and deferred tax.  

 

2.16. Employee benefits 

a) Short-term employee benefits  

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end 
of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the 
reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as 
other payables in the balance sheet. 

 

b) Post-employment benefits 

Defined Contribution scheme 

The Group operates a defined contribution plan in line with the provisions of Pension Reform Act 2014. The Group and its employees 
contribute a minimum of 10% and 8% of the employees qualifying emoluments respectively. The amount contributed by the Group is 
recognized as employee benefit expense and is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.   

The Group has no further payment obligation once the contributions have been paid. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to 
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payment is available. 

 

c) Termination benefits  

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an 
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of the 
following dates: (a) when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognizes costs for a 
restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In case of an offer made to encourage 
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits 
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their present value. 

 

2.17. Decommissioning and site restoration provision 

The Group makes provision for the future cost of decommissioning of its telecommunication towers on the leasehold land. These costs 
are expected to be incurred within 5 to 15 years depending on the term of the leasehold. The Group estimates this provision using existing 
technology at current prices as quoted by decommissioning experts, escalated at the relevant inflation factor. The inflated 
decommissioning provision is subsequently discounted to present value using the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the specific risk to the decommissioning liability. The timing of each decommissioning will 
depend on whether or not the lessor intends to renew the rent.  

A corresponding amount is recognized as an asset under tower equipment in property, plant and equipment This is subsequently amortised 
as part of the leasehold land. Other than the unwinding discount on the provision, any change in the present value of the estimated 
expenditure is reflected as an adjustment to the provision and the corresponding item of property, plant and equipment. 

 

2.18. Interest income 

Interest income is recognized in the statement of income and comprehensive income and is calculated using the effective interest method 
as set out in IAS 39.  

 

2.19. Leases 

a) Operating leases 

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by another party, the lessor, are classified as 
operating leases. Payments, including prepayments, made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are 
charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 
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2.19.  Leases (continued) 

a) Operating leases (continued) 

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of 
penalty is recognized as an expense in the period in which termination takes place. The Group has various leasehold land under operating 
lease agreements with lease terms ranging from 5 to 15 years. 

 

3. Introduction and overview of Group's risk management  

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including market risk (foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk 
and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management 
framework. The Board has established the strategic and finance planning committee, who is responsible for developing and monitoring the 
Group’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities. 

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits 
and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly by the executive 
management to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards 
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and 
obligations. 

The Group's management use derivative financial instruments as part of its risk management strategies. The Group does not designate 
the derivatives as hedging instrument. Thereby, fair value changes on derivatives that are not designated or do not qualify for hedge 
accounting are recognized in profit or loss when the changes arise. 

The Board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the 
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Board is supported by various management 
functions that checks and undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of compliance with established controls and procedures. 

 

Derivative financial instruments 

The Group has the following derivative financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. 

a) Cash-settled, short-term non-deliverable forward contracts (NDFs) where the gain or loss at the settlement date is calculated by taking 
the difference between the agreed upon contract exchange rate and the spot rate at the time of settlement, for an agreed upon notional 
amount of funds. The gain or loss is then settled at settlement date in the contract currency. The non-deliverable forwards are most 
frequently quoted in US Dollars and settled in Naira. 

The non-deliverable forward contracts are remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period based on the difference 
between the contract exchange rate and the spot exchange rate at the relevant reporting date. The spot exchange rate at each period 
end is not easily determined as this is an unusual instrument and there is limited market liquidity in Nigeria. The spot exchange rate 
is obtained from the FMDQ OTC securities exchange. 

b) Embedded derivative on the Group's redemption options in its related party loan with IHS Netherlands Holdco B.V. which is recognized 
in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.   

The derivative instruments have been classified as held for trading and accounted for at fair value through profit or loss. The instruments 
are measured at fair value (marked-to-market) with the resultant gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. The related net fair value gain 
is included in finance income in note 10. 

 

a) Market risk  

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Group’s income or 
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures 
within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. 

The Group manages market risks by keeping costs low through various cost optimization programs. Moreover, market developments are 
monitored and discussed regularly, and mitigating actions are taken where necessary.  
 

i. Foreign exchange risk 

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposures other than the Nigerian Naira. 
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions as well as recognized assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign 
operations. 

The Group is exposed to risks resulting from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. A material change in the value of any such 
foreign currency could result in a material adverse effect on the Group’s cash flow and future profits. The Group holds the majority of its 
cash and cash equivalents in Naira. However, the Group does maintain deposits in other currencies in order to fund ongoing commercial 
activity and other expenditure incurred in these currencies. 
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3. Introduction and overview of Group's risk management (continued) 

a) Market risk (continued) 

i. Foreign exchange risk (continued) 

In managing foreign exchange risk, the Group aims to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations on earnings. The Group has no export 
sales but it has clients that are invoiced in Naira but with foreign exchange indexation. The Group’s significant exposure to currency risk 
relates to its loan facilities that are mainly in US Dollars. Although the Group has various measures to mitigate exposure to foreign exchange 
rate movement over the longer term, the gains/losses on foreign exchange balances impact on the profit or loss. The Group manages 
foreign exchange risk through the use of derivative financial instruments such as non-deliverable forward contracts. The Group monitors 
the movement in the currency rates on an ongoing basis.  

Currency exposure arising from assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies is managed primarily by setting limits on the 
percentage of net assets that may be invested in such deposits.  

The summary of quantitative data about the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk is as follows: 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Cash and cash equivalents        205,198         105,899               8,261             90,602  

Trade and other receivables        300,023      2,022,225           265,881        2,022,225  

Derivative financial instrument  11,315,561   -     11,315,561   -    

Trade and other payables  (111,403)  (20,215)  (106,169)  (20,215) 

Borrowings  (4,888,125)  (4,134,435)  -     -    

Loans from related parties (89,416,142) (75,380,856)  (95,473,675)  (80,448,391) 

Net exposure (82,594,888) (77,407,382)  (83,990,141)  (78,355,779) 

 

Sensitivity analysis 

The table below shows the impact on the Group and Company's profit and equity if the exchange rate between the Naira and the following 
currencies had increased or decreased with all other variables held constant. 

Group (Decrease) / increase in profit (Decrease) / increase in profit 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 

 Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on 
 US Dollar Euro US Dollar Euro 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Effect of 20% percent strengthening (2016: 30%)  (16,524,759)  (5,781)  (23,222,215)  (2,348) 
Effect of 20% percent weakening (2016: 30%)  16,524,759   5,781   23,222,215   2,348  
 

Company (Decrease) / increase in profit (Decrease) / increase in profit 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 

 Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on 
 US Dollar Euro US Dollar Euro 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Effect of 20% percent strengthening (2016: 30%)  (16,798,028)  -     (23,506,734)  -    
Effect of 20% percent weakening (2016: 30%)  16,798,028   -     23,506,734   -    

 

Foreign denominated balances were translated using exchange rates between 304.5 and 360 during year. The Group has therefore used 
20% (2016: 30%) for the sensitivity analysis.  

 

ii. Interest rate risk 

The Group’s long-term loans and borrowings are issued at fixed rates. The Group is therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined 
in IFRS 7, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.  

 

b) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from clients and related parties. The carrying amount of financial assets 
represents the maximum credit exposure.  
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3. Introduction and overview of Group's risk management (continued) 

b) Credit risk (continued) 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 

  Group Company 

 Note 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Trade receivables 20      7,832,349   8,807,717        7,832,349   8,807,717  
Other receivables 20      1,940,893   110,844        1,921,604   110,844  
Derivative financial instruments 19          5,359,055   238,986       5,359,055   238,986 
Amounts due from related parties 28      35,448   72,514        2,937,170   6,142,423  
Cash and cash equivalents  21      5,388,602   2,931,183        5,191,642   2,915,885  

   20,556,347   12,161,244   23,241,820   18,215,855  

 

The financial assets are further broken down into: 

Group 2017 Trade 
receivables 

Other 
receivables 

Amounts due 
from related 

parties 

Cash and 
cash 

equivalents 

Derivative 
financial 

instruments Total 

   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000  
Neither past due nor impaired        777,927     1,927,393            35,448       5,388,602      5,359,055  13,488,425  
Past due but not impaired     3,631,893          13,500                    -                     -                      -      3,645,393  
Impaired     3,422,529                    -                      -                     -                      -      3,422,529  

     7,832,349     1,940,893            35,448       5,388,602      5,359,055  20,556,347  

 
   Group 2016 

 Neither past due nor impaired        598,434          81,090            72,514       2,931,183         238,986   3,922,207  
 Past due but not impaired     7,532,707          13,500                    -                     -                      -      7,546,207  
 Impaired        676,576          16,254                    -                     -                      -         692,830  

     8,807,717        110,844            72,514       2,931,183     238,986  12,161,244  

 
 
  
Company 2017 

Trade 
receivables 

Other 
receivables 

Amounts due 
from related 

parties 

Cash and 
cash 

equivalents 

Derivative 
financial 

instruments Total 

   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000   ₦'000  
 Neither past due nor impaired  777,927   1.908,104   2,937,170   5,191,642   5,359,055  16,173,898  

 Past due but not impaired  3,631,893   13,500   -     -     -     3,645,393  

 Impaired  3,422,529   -     -     -     -     3,422,529  

     7,832,349     1,921,604        2,937,170       5,191,642   5,359,055  23,241,820  

    Company 2016  

 Neither past due nor impaired       598,434          81,090       6,142,423       2,915,885         238,986    9,976,818  
 Past due but not impaired     7,532,707          13,500                    -                     -                      -      7,546,207  
 Impaired        676,576          16,254                    -                     -                      -         692,830  

     8,807,717        110,844        6,142,423       2,915,885   238,986  18,215,855  

 
i. Concentration of credit risk 

The Group utilizes data analysis and market knowledge to determine the concentration of its risks by reference to independent and internal 
ratings of customers. The assessment of the concentration risk are consistent with the overall risk appetite as established by the Group. 
The Group's credit concentration is based on internal ratings from the finance department. The finance department classifies customers 
as mega or non-mega based on sales revenue from each customer during the period.  
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3. Introduction and overview of Group's risk management (continued) 

b) Credit risk (continued) 

i. Concentration of credit risk (continued) 

Below is the credit concentration for trade receivables at the reporting date: 

Trade receivables 

  Group Company 

  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Mega customers   5,708,751   7,751,918   5,708,751   7,751,918  
Non-mega customers   2,123,598   1,055,799   2,123,598   1,055,799  

   7,832,349   8,807,717   7,832,349   8,807,717  

 

Mega customers - Customers who individually account for more than 10% of sales revenue. 

Non-mega customers - Customers who individually account for less than 10% of sales revenue. 

 
ii. Credit quality of financial assets 

The credit quality of the portfolio of trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired can be referenced to internal 
information about counterparty default rates and the credit policy of the Group. 

An analysis of the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired is presented as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

  Group Company 

  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
AAA   3,170,728   -     3,170,728   -    
A   196,960   -     -     -    
A+   1,668,861     130,769   1,668,861     115,471  
B+   -     2,341   -     2,341  
B   4   4   4   4  
B-   351,103   2,795,231   351,103   2,795,231  
Not rated (cash at hand)   946   2,838   946   2,838  

   5,388,602   2,931,183   5,191,642   2,915,885  

    
Ratings are based on Fitch ratings as at year end date. 

 

Trade receivables 

As at 31 December 2017 trade receivables of ₦777.93 million for the Group and Company (2016: ₦598.43 million) were neither past due 
nor impaired. The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to internal rating 
provided by the credit department. The credit ratings of these trade receivables is as follows: 

  Group Company 

  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Group 1  761,128 476,161  761,128   476,161  
Group 2  16,799  122,273   16,799   122,273  

   777,927   598,434   777,927   598,434 

Trade receivables are categorized by the Credit Control Unit team. This classification is based on the net worth of the customers and level 
of occupancy at the Company's sites and revenue during the period. 

Group 1 – Mega customers with less than or equal to 3 months credit days 
Group 2 – Non-mega customers with less than or equal to 3 months credit days 
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3. Introduction and overview of Group's risk management (continued) 

b) Credit risk (continued) 

ii. Credit quality of financial assets (continued) 

Other receivables 

  Group Company 

  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
A+  183,988 - 183,988 - 
B   1,656,132   -     1,656,132   -    
Not rated    87,273   81,090   67,984   81,090  

   1,927,393   81,090   1,908,104   81,090  

 
Ratings are based on Fitch rating as at year end date. Other receivables not rated comprises of short term advances. 

 

Derivative financial instrument (Non - deliverable forwards) 

  Group Company 

  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
B   1,197,647   -     1,197,647   -    

   1,197,647   -     1,197,647   -    

 
Rating is based on Fitch rating as at year end date. 

 
Definition of Fitch ratings 

AAA: Highest credit quality -  'AAA' ratings denote the lowest expectation of default risk. They are assigned only in cases of exceptionally 
strong capacity for payment of financial commitments. This capacity is highly unlikely to be adversely affected by foreseeable events. 

A: High credit quality -  'A' ratings denote expectations of low default risk. The capacity for payment of financial commitments is considered 
strong. This capacity may, nevertheless, be more vulnerable to adverse business or economic conditions than is the case for higher 
ratings. 

B: Highly speculative -  'B' ratings indicate that material default risk is present, but a limited margin of safety remains. Financial 
commitments are currently being met; however, capacity for continued payment is vulnerable to deterioration in the business and economic 
environment. 

The modifier “+” or “-” is appended to a rating to denote relative status within major rating categories. 

Bank ratings are based on Fitch rating as at year end dates. 

 

iii. Maturity analysis of financial assets that are past due but not impaired: 

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of ₦3.63 billion (2016: ₦7.53 billion) for the Group and Company were past due but not 
impaired. This relates to a number of independent customers from whom there is no recent history of default. The aging analysis of these 
trade receivables is as follows: 

  Group Company 

  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
0 – 30 days   73,815   194,503  73,815   194,503 
31 - 60 days   336,124   266,298   336,124   266,298  
61 – 90 days  1,081,697 2,954,845 1,081,697 2,954,845 
Over 90 days   2,140,257   4,117,061   2,140,257   4,117,061  

   3,631,893   7,532,707   3,631,893   7,532,707  
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3. Introduction and overview of Group's risk management (continued) 

b) Credit risk (continued) 

iv. Financial assets that are impaired 

During the year, trade receivables of ₦2.73 billion (2016: ₦562.99 million) were impaired for the Group and Company. The Group does not 
secure any collateral for trade and other receivables  

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows: 

  Group Company 

  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance, as at 1 January   692,830   712,920   692,830   712,920  

Impairment charges   2,729,699   562,997   2,729,699   562,997  

Impairment losses written-off   -     (579,699)  -     (579,699) 

Impairment reversals   -     (3,388)  -     (3,388) 

Balance, as at 31 December   3,422,529   692,830   3,422,529   692,830  

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables. 
The main components of this allowance is a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures. 

 

c) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it 
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. 

Typically, the credit terms with clients are more favorable compared to payment terms to its vendors in order to help provide sufficient 
cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial obligations. This excludes the potential impact 
of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. 

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities including estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting 
agreements into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.  
 

Group 
 

 
Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cashflows 

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5-10 years 

As at 31 December 2017  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Trade and other payables        3,753,364        3,753,364       3,753,364                   -                      -                      -    

Amounts due to related parties   90,577,009   126,485,109     10,899,333       8,231,122    101,072,917        6,281,737  

Borrowings   4,855,908        5,491,220          393,910       5,097,310                    -                      -    

   99,186,281    135,729,693     15,046,607     13,328,432    101,072,917        6,281,737  

        
As at 31 December 2016        
Trade and other payables   2,826,329   2,826,329   2,826,329   -     -    - 
Amounts due to related parties   76,141,897   114,412,887   9,684,428   6,962,157   92,452,999  5,313,303 
Borrowings   4,081,531   4,991,722   337,810   337,810   4,316,102  - 

   83,049,757   122,230,938   12,848,567   7,299,967   96,769,101  5,313,303 
 

 

Company 
 

 
Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cashflows 

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5-10 years 

As at 31 December 2017  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Trade and other payables        3,738,426        3,738,426       3,738,426                   -                      -                      -    

Amounts due to related parties      96,429,713    133,113,508     11,133,933     13,341,723    102,356,115        6,281,737  

    100,168,139    136,851,934     14,872,359     13,341,723    102,356,115        6,281,737  

        
As at 31 December 2016        
Trade and other payables   2,635,218   2,635,218   2,635,218   -     -    - 
Amounts due to related parties   81,156,527   120,345,628   10,028,853   7,306,582   97,696,890  5,313,303 

   83,791,745   122,980,846   12,664,071   7,306,582   97,696,890  5,313,303 
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3. Introduction and overview of Group's risk management (continued) 

d) Capital risk management 

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for 
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to 
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt 
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the statement 
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the statement of financial position 
plus net debt. 

The Group's gearing ratios are shown in the table below: 

 Notes Group Company 

  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Borrowings 24      4,855,908   4,081,531   -     -    

Loans from related parties 28    87,908,798   73,419,626      93,934,103   78,434,256  
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 21     (5,388,602)  (2,931,183)     (5,191,642)  (2,915,885) 

Net debt   87,376,104   74,569,974   88,742,461   75,518,371  

      
Total equity    (64,537,331)  (52,371,382)   (63,472,092)   (48,696,479) 

Total capital employed   22,838,773   22,198,592   25,270,369   26,821,892  

Gearing ratio   383% 336% 351% 282% 

 

e) Fair value hierarchy 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most 
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as 
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices). 

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). 

  Group Company 

Level 2  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Embedded derivatives  4,161,408   238,986  4,161,408      238,986  
Non-deliverable forwards    1,197,647                   -      1,197,647                   -    

    5,359,055       238,986    5,359,055       238,986  

Financial assets in level 2 

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by 
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little 
as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is 
included in level 2. 

Instruments included in level 2 comprise of options embedded within the terms of the IHS Netherlands HoldCo B.V. listed bond and non-
deliverable forwards (NDFs). The fair values of the options are determined using Bloomberg's implementation of the Hull-White option 
pricing model. The fair values of non-deliverable forwards are determined based on marked to market values provided by the FMDQ OTC 
Securities Exchange (FMDQ).  

 

Fair value estimation 

Except for long term borrowings and loans from related parties (measured at amortised cost), the carrying amounts of cash and cash 
equivalents, trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables approximate their fair values. 
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3. Introduction and overview of Group's risk management (continued) 

Fair value estimation (continued) 

 Notes Group Company 

Borrowings  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Carrying amount 24  4,855,908   4,081,531   -     -    

Fair value   4,866,965   4,135,974   -     -    

Loans from related parties      
Carrying amount 28  87,908,798   73,419,626   93,934,103   78,434,256  

Fair value   96,098,933   76,780,362   102,085,649   81,844,274  

The fair values of the IHS Netherlands Holdco B.V. $236.94 million 9.5% Senior Notes and IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V. 
$13.065 million 8.375% Guaranteed Senior Notes have been determined with reference to their respective traded prices. Their fair values 
fall under level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.  

The fair values of other related party loans are based on cash flows discounted using the Group’s borrowing rate of 9.5% (2016: 9.5%). 
These fair values are within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

 

Financial instruments by category  

The Group's financial instruments are categorized as follows: 

Group 2017 
 

 
 

Fair value through 
profit or loss 

Loans and  
receivables Total 

Financial Assets  Notes ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Trade receivables  20  -          7,832,349       7,832,349  
Other receivables  20  832,691          1,108,202       1,940,893 
Amounts due from related parties  28  -               35,448            35,448  
Cash and cash equivalents   21  -          5,388,602       5,388,602  

Derivative financial asset  19  5,359,055                    -         5,359,055  

    6,191,746   14,364,601   20,556,347  

      

 Group 2017 

Financial liabilities   Fair value through 
profit or loss 

Amortised 
Cost 

Total 

   ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Borrowings  24  -          4,855,908       4,855,908  

Amounts due to related parties  28  -        90,577,009     90,577,009  

Trade and other payables  26  -          3,753,364       3,753,364  

    -     99,186,281   99,186,281  

 
 
Group 2016 
 

 

 
Fair value through 

profit or loss 
Loans and  

receivables Total 
Financial Assets  Notes ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Trade receivables  20   -     8,807,717   8,807,717  
Other receivables  20   -     110,844   110,844  
Amounts due from related parties  28   -     72,514   72,514  
Cash and cash equivalents   21   -     2,931,183   2,931,183  

Derivative financial asset  19   238,986   -     238,986  

    238,986   11,922,258   12,161,244  

 
 
Financial liabilities 

  
Fair value through 

profit or loss 
Amortised 

Cost Total 
   ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Borrowings  24  -     4,081,531   4,081,531  
Amounts due to related parties  28  -     76,141,897   76,141,897  
Trade and other payables  26  -     2,826,329   2,826,329  

    -     83,049,757   83,049,757  
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3. Introduction and overview of Group's risk management (continued) 

Financial instruments by category (continued) 

 

Company 2017 
 

 
 

Fair value through 
profit or loss 

Loans and  
receivables Total 

Financial Assets  Notes ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Trade receivables  20  -          7,832,349       7,832,349  
Other receivables  20  832,691          1,088,913       1,921,604  
Amounts due from related parties  28  -          2,937,170       2,937,170  
Cash and cash equivalents   21  -          5,191,642       5,191,642  

Derivative financial asset  19  5,359,055                    -         5,359,055  

    6,191,746   17,050,074   23,241,820  

      

Financial liabilities 
  Fair value through 

profit or loss 
Amortised 

Cost Total 

   ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Amounts due to related parties  28  -        96,429,713     96,429,713  
Trade and other payables  26  -          3,738,426       3,738,426  

    -     100,168,139   100,168,139  

 

Company 2016 
 

 
 

Fair value through 
profit or loss 

Loans and  
receivables Total 

Financial Assets  Notes ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Trade receivables  20  -     8,807,717   8,807,717  
Other receivables  20  -     110,844   110,844  
Amounts due from related parties  28  -     6,142,423   6,142,423  
Cash and cash equivalents   21  -     2,915,885   2,915,885  

Derivative financial asset  19  238,986   -     238,986  

    238,986   17,976,869   18,215,855  

 
 

     
   Company 2016 

Financial liabilities 
  Fair value through 

profit or loss 
Amortised 

Cost Total 

   ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Amounts due to related parties  28  -     81,156,527   81,156,527  
Trade and other payables  26  -     2,635,218   2,635,218  

    -     83,791,745   83,791,745  

 

 

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make certain judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions that 
affect the amounts reported to the assets and liabilities as at the reporting date and the amounts reported for revenues and expenses 
during the year. The nature of the estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those estimates. The key source of estimation 
uncertainty that have a risk of causing adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below. 

 

a) Assessment of appropriate foreign exchange rate 

The Group has been using the relevant central bank rate, being the relevant official rate in each jurisdiction for foreign currency translation. 
On April 24, 2017, the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) introduced a special foreign exchange window for investors and exporters, known 
as the NAFEX market. By introducing the NAFEX window, the CBN created a situation where there are multiple differing official rates in 
the market. This resulted in a need for the Group to consider the appropriate exchange rates for translating foreign denominated 
transactions and balances.  

The Group considered the requirements of IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates and also performed an assessment 
of the availability of the NAFEX rate in the market. The Group’s analysis concluded that access to US Dollar in Nigeria in the future to 
meet payments or dividends is expected to be obtained via the more liquid NAFEX market.  

Management applied their judgement in determining when it was most appropriate to switch from CBN rates to NAFEX rates. This 
judgement was based around whether the Group had sufficient access to the NAFEX market.  
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued) 

a) Assessment of appropriate foreign exchange rate (continued) 

Based on this judgement, management determined that it was appropriate to switch at December 31, 2017. On this basis, the NAFEX 
rate should be used for the translation of USD denominated balances and for consolidation purposes at 31 December 2017. The CBN 
rate continued to be applied to income and expenses until 31 December 2017. The NAFEX rate will be adopted for balances and classes 
of transactions from January 1, 2018. 

 

b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment 

The Group assesses its property plant and equipment for possible impairment if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate 
that carrying values of the assets may not be recoverable, or at least at every reporting date. Such indicators include changes in the 
Group's business plans, changes in prices, evidence of physical damage and technological changes and impacts of obsolescence. 

If there are rapid changes in technology of the existing telecommunication infrastructure, the Group may need to recognize significant 
impairment charges. The assessment for impairment entails comparing the carrying value of the assets with its recoverable amount, that 
is, the higher of the value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated 
future net cash flows. Determination as to whether and how much an asset is impaired involves management estimates on highly uncertain 
matters such as future prices of telecommunication towers equipment, the effects of inflation on operating expenses, discount rates, etc. 

Impairment losses of ₦256.98 million and ₦156.64 million (2016: ₦3.67 billion and ₦1.32 billion) has been recognized by the Group and 
Company respectively to write down the carrying amount of the assets to its recoverable amount.  

 

c) Decommissioning and site restoration provision 

Provisions are made for decommissioning and site restoration costs for the telecommunication towers constructed on the Group's leased 
land. These estimates are based on current construction requirements, technology, price levels and expected plans for remediation. Actual 
costs and cash outflows can differ from estimates because of changes in government legislation, prices when the obligation crystallizes. 
The following critical judgements have been made: 

i. Probability factor of 2% (2016: 2%) which represents a percentage of the estimated number of sites expected to be 
decommissioned to the total number of sites on leased land. 

ii. Inflation rate of 15.9% (2016: 12%). 

iii. Discount rate of 17% (2016: 17%) reflecting the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The cash flows used to arrive at the present value 
of the decommissioning liability were unadjusted. 

 

Sensitivity analysis 

Based on the simulation performed, the impact on post tax loss of a 5% shift in discount rate is given below: 

 (Decrease) / increase in profit (Decrease) / increase in profit 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Effect of 5% increase in discount rate on profit or loss  (1,658)  (42,694)  (1,180)  (33,069) 
Effect of 5% decrease in discount rate on profit or loss  1,658   42,694   1,180   33,069  

 

d) Deferred taxation 

A certain level of judgement is required for recognition of the deferred tax assets. Management is required to assess the ability of the 
Company to generate future taxable economic earnings that will utilize the deferred tax assets. Assumptions over the generation of future 
taxable profits depends on management's estimates of future cashflows and applicability of withholding taxes on earned and collected 
revenue. The estimates are based on the future cash flow from operations taking into consideration the rental income for colocation, 
growth in tenancy rates, maintenance income and likely diesel variations.  

Deferred tax assets amounting to amounting to ₦28.93 billion and ₦27.73 billion (2016: ₦31.21 billion and ₦29.67 billion) have not been 
recognized by the Group and Company respectively due to uncertainties relating to the timing and amount of future taxable profits. 
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued) 

e) Impairment of withholding tax assets 

The Group's management has determined that the utilization of withholding taxes against future tax liabilities may be in doubt due to 
uncertainties of immediate future taxable profit position of the entity. Impairment loss of ₦3.06 billion (2016: ₦6.63 billion) has been 
recognized by the Group and Company during the year.  

 

f) Impairment of trade receivables 

The Group reviews trade receivables at least annually and when there is any indication of impairment. Based on the current economic 
environment and other factors affecting some customers, management expects that the ability of these customers to settle amounts owed 
to the Company have deteriorated. Impairment losses amounting to ₦2.73 billion (2016: ₦562.99 million) has been recognized by the 
Group and Company due to uncertainties in the recoverability of outstanding receivables from these customers.  

 

g) Estimation of asset useful lives of property, plant and equipment  

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment on 
an annual basis 

 

h) Estimation of asset useful lives of intangible assets  

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and related amortization charge for its intangible assets with finite lives 
based on the period of the contractual or other legal rights. Useful lives do not exceed the period of those rights, but may be shorter 
depending on the period over which the asset is expected to be in use. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but 
are reviewed at each reporting period to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life 
assessment for that asset. 

 

i) Valuation of options embedded in IHS Netherlands B.V. listed bond 

The Group has analyzed the listed bond issued by IHS Netherlands Holdco B.V. in October 2016 (which the Group is a guarantor to) and 
notes issued by IHS Netherlands FinCo NG B.V. (formerly Helios Towers Finance Netherlands B.V.) in July 2014 in accordance with IAS 
39 and has identified free standing call and put options embedded that required separate valuation.  

The Group employed valuation techniques commonly used by market participants to evaluate bonds with embedded options, including 
discounted cashflow and option pricing models, and make maximum reference to market inputs. The techniques adopted include the 
major factors that market participants would consider in setting a price and are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for 
pricing financial instruments. The options are priced using interest-rate option pricing models such as the Hull-White model. 

 

 

5. Revenue 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Owned  21,488,439   16,960,461   16,103,044   12,719,073  
Managed services  1,403,730   2,746,532   1,416,706   2,746,532  

  22,892,169   19,706,993   17,519,750   15,465,605  

 
The Group’s revenue accrues from providing telecommunications support services. The Group provides infrastructure sharing and leasing 
(colocation) and to a limited extent, managed services. Revenue from colocation arrangements includes colocation rental revenue and 
colocation services. The Group leases out its towers under operating leases over period ranging between 5 and 15 years. 
 
Contingent rents recognized as income were ₦2.52 billion in 2017 (2016: nil). 
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5. Revenue (continued) 

The lease component of future minimum rental receipts expected from tenants under non-cancellable colocation operating lease 
agreements in effect were as follows: 
 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Within 1 year 6,585,582 10,055,481 4,560,354 7,788,545 
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 10,357,031 13,849,173 7,171.990 10,726,976 
Later than 5 years - - - - 

  16,942,613   23,904,654   11,732,344   18,515,521  

 
Certain customer contracts allow for the cancellation of a proportion of colocation sites during the contract term without payment of 
termination penalties. The minimum lease payments in the table above assumes that each customer will fully utilize this churn available to 
them under the contract. Where rentals are denominated in US Dollars, they have been included in the above table at the exchange rate 
at the reporting date. 

 
6. Cost of sales 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Fuel and diesel  4,460,478   4,870,510   3,442,212   3,772,236  

Depreciation (note 14)  2,636,352   3,714,743   1,841,835   2,697,663  

Regulatory permits and fees  812,736   174,647   576,556   120,437  

Rent   767,958   837,505   641,408   577,545  

Repairs and maintenance  650,478   571,274   495,650   442,358  

Staff costs (note 8)  641,862   825,075   641,862   825,075  

Security  541,095   656,395   354,111   452,652  

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment (note 14)       256,986   3,669,046         156,644   1,318,433  

Impairment loss on prepaid land lease (note 17)         43,035   68,923           43,035   68,923  

Insurance  34,453   33,452   23,858   23,069  

Professional fees  9,365   210,981   6,485   145,493  

Other expenses  1,366   56,473   946   38,944  

Public power  7,453     53,215   5,161   36,697  

  10,863,617   15,742,239   8,229,763   10,519,525  

 

7. Administrative expenses 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Impairment of withholding tax receivable *     3,062,507   6,630,476      3,062,507   6,630,476  

Impairment loss on trade receivables (note 20)     2,729,699   562,997      2,729,699   562,997  

Staff costs (note 8)        381,743   1,228,121         381,743   1,228,121  

One-off decommissioning provision (note 25) **                  -     1,058,138                   -     285,469  

Other expenses        133,613   543,891           78,635   402,187  

Professional fees          94,968   625,069           38,055   567,630  

Repairs and maintenance          60,816   17,991           36,450   13,380  

Rent           54,416   117,163           32,614   78,342  

Audit fees          39,040   31,775           24,568   28,000  

Travel expenses          16,253   68,493           9,741   50,941  

Depreciation (note 14)          29,344   54,880           29,344   54,880  

Amortization (note 15)          22,374   20,770           22,374   20,770  

Bank charges          17,875   28,894           17,770   20,751  

Loss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment (note 14)            6,312   -               6,312   -    

  6,648,960   10,988,658  6,469,812 9,943,944  
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7. Administrative expenses (continued) 

* This relates to withholding tax credit notes which in management's opinion, cannot be utilised against income tax liabilities in the nearest 
future. 

** This represents a one-off provision for restoring leased sites which were earmarked for decommissioning by management. 

 

8. Staff costs 
 

a) Staff cost comprise: 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Salaries, wages, and allowances  820,898   1,271,559   820,898   1,271,559  

Pension costs  75,090   43,754   75,090   43,754  

Redundancy costs  -     472,040   -     472,040  

Other benefits  127,617   265,843   127,617   265,843  

  1,023,605   2,053,196   1,023,605   2,053,196  

b) Staff cost was classified as: 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Cost of sales (note 6)  641,862   825,075   641,862   825,075  

Administrative expenses (note 7)  381,743   1,228,121   381,743   1,228,121  

  1,023,605   2,053,196   1,023,605   2,053,196  

c) Employees of the Company, whose duties were wholly or mainly discharged in Nigeria received remuneration (excluding pension 
contributions and certain benefits) during the period in the following ranges: 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

  ₦  200,001    -   ₦1,000,000  -     2   -     2  

  ₦ 1,000,001  -   ₦ 2,000,000  57   78   57   78  

  ₦ 2,000,001  -   ₦ 3,000,000  21   33   21   33  

  ₦ 3,000,001  -   ₦4,000,000  24   31   24   31  

  ₦ 4,000,001  -   ₦5,000,000  19   20   19   20  

  ₦ 5,000,001  -   ₦ 6,000,000  4   5   4   5  

  Above ₦ 6,000,001  19   26   19   26  

  144   195   144   195  

 
9. Other income 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Reversal of decommissioning provision (note 25) *  164,001   -     126,269   -    

Insurance claims  960   5,357   960   5,357  

Gain on disposal of property, plant, and equipment (note 14)  -     283   -     283  
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables (note 20)  -     3,388   -     3,388  
Reversal of unutilized provisions ** 195,524 - - - 

  360,485   9,028   127,229   9,028  

*This represents a one-off reversal of provisions made to decommission and restore leased sites in which Towers equipment are 
constructed to their original states which are no longer required. 

**This represents a one-off reversal of excess provisions which are no longer required. 
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10. Finance income 
 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Fair value gains on non-deliverable forwards  2,660,843   -     2,660,843   -    

Interest income - bank deposits  64,276   152,169   64,276   152,169  

Interest income - short term investments  37,507   -     37,507   -    

  2,762,626   152,169   2,762,626   152,169  

 
11. Finance cost 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Interest expense - borrowings (see note 24)  354,831   6,681,914   -     -    
Interest expense - loans from related parties (see note 28)  7,635,583   1,323,722   8,066,741   8,109,760  
Interest expense - decommissioning liability (see note 25)  33,162   145,158   23,599   112,433  
Other finance costs *  60,013   3,608,023   60,013   3,608,023  
Net foreign exchange losses - unrealized **  14,814,501   27,376,294   14,993,791   27,377,692  

  22,898,090   39,135,111   23,144,144   39,207,908  

* ₦3.61 billion was paid in 2016 as early redemption premium to certain noteholders of the $250 million 8.375% Guaranteed Senior Notes 
due 2019 issued by IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V. (formerly Helios Towers Finance Netherlands B.V.). 

** This relates to unrealized losses from fluctuations in monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency which were revalued 
at the end of the year in accordance with IAS 21 The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

 
12. Fair value through profit & loss 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Fair value gains on embedded derivative instruments  3,761,192   3,379,640   3,761,192   3,379,640  

  3,761,192   3,379,640   3,761,192   3,379,640  

In accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement, embedded derivative assets have been measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. As such, changes in fair value are shown as a separate line item in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 

 
13. Foreign exchange gain or losses 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain  (1,254,699)  47,886   (1,076,734)  47,886  

  (1,254,699)  47,886   (1,076,734)  47,886  

This relates to net realised gains and losses recognized on settlement of transactions. 
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14. Property, plant and equipment 

Group 
Land Buildings 

Towers and  
tower equipment 

Furniture, fittings & 
equipment 

Motor 
Vehicles 

Work-in-
progress Total 

Cost ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance as at 1 January 2017  72,140   100,236   43,680,049   396,143   311,155   297,952   44,857,675  

Additions  58,833   -     66,531   4,618   -     1,218,813   1,348,795  

Reclassification  -     -     1,262,862   -     -     (1,262,862)  -    

Disposals  -     -     (11,873)  -     -     -     (11,873) 

Balance as at 31 December 2017  130,973   100,236   44,997,569   400,761   311,155   253,903   46,194,597  

        

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses        
Balance as at 1 January 2017  4,151   97,209   25,188,784   381,887   281,814   -     25,953,845  

Depreciation   -     3,027   2,636,352   12,174   14,143   -     2,665,696  

Impairment   -     -     256,986   -     -     -     256,986  

Disposals  -     -     (5,309)  -     -     -     (5,309) 

Balance as at 31 December 2017  4,151   100,236   28,076,813   394,061   295,957   -     28,871,218  

Net book value as at 31 December 2017  126,822   -     16,920,756   6,700   15,198   253,903   17,323,379  

        

Cost        
Balance as at 1 January 2016  64,541   100,236   41,835,379   396,558   380,028   356,573   43,133,315  

Additions  7,599   -     30,963   -     -     1,776,724   1,815,286  

Reclassification  -     -     1,835,345   -     -     (1,835,345)  -    

Disposals  -     -     (21,638)  (415)  (68,873)  -     (90,926) 

Balance as at 31 December 2016  72,140   100,236   43,680,049   396,143   311,155   297,952   44,857,675  

        

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses        
Balance as at 1 January 2016  3,208   43,022   17,924,173   316,435   301,327   -     18,588,165  

Depreciation   943   54,187   3,610,485   65,583   38,425   -     3,769,623  

Impairment   -     -     3,669,046   -     -     -     3,669,046  

Disposals  -     -     (14,920)  (131)  (57,938)  -     (72,989) 

Balance as at 31 December 2016  4,151   97,209   25,188,784   381,887   281,814   -     25,953,845  

Net book value as at 31 December 2016  67,989   3,027   18,491,265   14,256   29,341   297,952   18,903,830  
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14. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Company 
Land Buildings 

Towers and 
tower equipment 

Furniture, fittings & 
equipment 

Motor 
Vehicles 

Work-in-
progress Total 

Cost ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance as at 1 January 2017  72,140   100,236   34,934,418   396,143   311,155   297,949   36,112,041  

Additions  58,833   -     66,531   4,618   -     1,218,813   1,348,795  

Reclassification  -     -     1,262,862   -     -     (1,262,862)  -    

Disposals  -     -     (11,873)  -     -     -     (11,873) 

Balance as at 31 December 2017  130,973   100,236   36,251,938   400,761   311,155   253,900   37,448,963  

        

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses        
Balance as at 1 January 2017  4,151   97,209   19,669,905   381,887   281,814   -     20,434,966  

Depreciation   -     3,027   1,841,835   12,174   14,143   -     1,871,179  

Impairment   -     -     156,644   -     -     -     156,644  

Disposals  -     -     (5,309)  -     -     -     (5,309) 

Balance as at 31 December 2017  4,151   100,236   21,663,075   394,061   295,957   -     22,457,480  

Net book value as at 31 December 2017  126,822   -     14,588,863   6,700   15,198   253,900   14,991,483  

        

Cost        
Balance as at 1 January 2016  64,541   100,236   33,089,748   396,558   380,028   356,570   34,387,681  

Additions  7,599   -     30,963   -     -     1,776,724   1,815,286  

Reclassification  -     -     1,835,345   -     -     (1,835,345)  -    

Disposals  -     -     (21,638)  (415)  (68,873)  -     (90,926) 

Balance as at 31 December 2016  72,140   100,236   34,934,418   396,143   311,155   297,949   36,112,041  

        

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses        
Balance as at 1 January 2016  3,208   43,022   15,772,987   316,435   301,327   -     16,436,979  

Depreciation   943   54,187   2,593,405   65,583   38,425   -     2,752,543  

Impairment   -     -     1,318,433   -     -     -     1,318,433  

Disposals  -     -     (14,920)  (131)  (57,938)  -     (72,989) 

Balance as at 31 December 2016  4,151   97,209   19,669,905   381,887   281,814   -     20,434,966  

Net book value as at 31 December 2016  67,989   3,027   15,264,513   14,256   29,341   297,949   15,677,075  

 

Work-in-progress comprises mainly of tower equipment still under construction and not yet available for use. The Group transfers such assets to the appropriate asset class once they are available 
for use. There were no qualifying borrowing costs to be capitalized. 

During the year, a total of 18 sites (2016: 278 sites) were earmarked for decommissioning by management and the assets relating to these sites were tested for impairment. Impairment losses of 
₦256.99 million and ₦156.64 million (2016: ₦3.67 billion and ₦1.32 billion) has been recognized by the Group and Company respectively to write down the carrying amount of the assets to its 
recoverable amount. These sites are not live and therefore have no value in use. The recoverable amounts of the assets have been determined with reference to their fair value less cost to sell. 
Fair values of the assets were based on prices offered by third party vendors. Since this is an unobservable input, the fair value of the assets is classified as level 3 fair value. The impairment loss 
is included in cost of sales in the statement of profit or loss (see note 6). 
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14. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 

14.1. Analysis of depreciation into cost of sales and administrative expenses 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Cost of sales (note 6)  2,636,352   3,714,743   1,841,835   2,697,663  

Administrative expenses (note 7)  29,344   54,880   29,344   54,880  

  2,665,696   3,769,623   1,871,179   2,752,543  

 
14.2. Analysis of additions to property, plant and equipment  

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Additions through cash  1,282,264   1,784,323   1,282,264   1,784,323  

Additions through increase in decommissioning estimates  66,531   30,963   66,531   30,963  

  1,348,795   1,815,286   1,348,795   1,815,286  

 

14.3. Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Cost of the asset  11,873   90,926   11,873   90,926  
Accumulated depreciation  (5,309)  (72,989)  (5,309)  (72,989) 
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant, and equipment  (6,312)  283   (6,312)  283  

Net proceeds from sale of assets  252   18,220   252   18,220  

 
15. Intangible assets 

Group and Company 
   Software Licenses Total 

Cost   ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

At 1 January 2017    128,307   2,301   130,608  

Additions     48,905   -     48,905  

At 31 December 2017    177,212   2,301   179,513  

      

Accumulated amortization      
At 1 January 2017    122,501   1,969   124,470  

Charge for the year       22,155   219   22,374  

At 31 December 2017    144,656   2,188   146,844  

      
Net book value as at 31 December 2017    32,556   113   32,669  

      
At 1 January 2016    108,243   1,941   110,184  

Additions     20,064   360   20,424  

At 31 December 2016    128,307   2,301   130,608  

      

Accumulated amortization      
At 1 January 2016    101,961   1,739   103,700  

Charge for the year       20,540   230   20,770  

At 31 December 2016    122,501   1,969   124,470  

      
Net book value as at 31 December 2016    5,806   332   6,138  

Amortization charge is included in administrative expense (note 7). 
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16. Investments in subsidiaries 

 Type of 
Investment 

Country of 
Incorporation % Holding ₦'000 

IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V.  Direct Netherlands  100.00   466,125  

Tower Infrastructure Company Limited Direct Nigeria  100.00   1,000  

     467,125  

IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V. is a special purpose vehicle registered in the Netherlands for the issuance of the Company's 
bonds.  

The principal activity of Tower Infrastructure Company Limited is the acquisition and leasing of telecommunications infrastructure to 
telecommunications and other service providers. 

 

17. Prepaid land rent 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance, as at 1 January  1,309,291   1,451,523   1,309,291   1,451,523  

Additions  955,943   509,983   955,943   509,983  

Amortization   (697,251)  (583,292)  (697,251)  (583,292) 

Impairment (note 7)  (43,035)  (68,923)  (43,035)  (68,923) 

Balance, as at 31 December  1,524,948   1,309,291   1,524,948   1,309,291  

     
Due within 12 months  479,521   525,642   479,521   525,642  

Due after 12 months  1,045,427   783,649   1,045,427   783,649  

  1,524,948   1,309,291   1,524,948   1,309,291  

 
The Group leases land on which its towers are situated under long-term operating leases with rentals paid in advance for periods of over 5 
years. The minimum lease payments on leasehold land are as follows: 
 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Within 1 year         853,635           384,776                853,635          384,776  

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years      1,332,267        2,333,073             1,332,267       2,333,073  

Later than 5 years      3,480,912        3,462,425             3,480,912       3,462,425  

  5,666,814   6,180,274   5,666,814   6,180,274  

 
18. Inventories 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Stock of materials  715,681   539,677   715,681   539,677  

 
The cost of inventories recognized as cost of sales for the Group and Company during the year was ₦4.46 billion and ₦3.44 billion 
respectively (2016: Group ₦4.87 billion, Company ₦3.77 billion) 

 
19. Derivative financial instruments 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Embedded options (see (a) below)  4,161,408   238,986   4,161,408   238,986  
Non-deliverable forwards (see (b) below)  1,197,647   -     1,197,647   -    

  5,359,055  238,986   5,359,055  238,986  
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19. Derivative financial instruments (continued) 

Movement in embedded options: 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 

 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance, as at 1 January  238,986   -     238,986   -    

Initial value of options  -     (191,503)  -     (191,503) 

Fair value adjustments  3,761,192   430,175   3,761,192   430,175  

Revaluation gains  161,230   314   161,230   314  

Balance, as at 31 December  4,161,408   238,986   4,161,408   238,986  

This represents the fair value of the put and call options embedded within the terms of the IHS Netherlands Holdco B.V. listed bond. The 
call options give the Group the right to redeem the bond instruments at a date prior to the maturity date (27 October 2021), under certain 
conditions and at a premium over the initial notional amount. The put option provides the holders with the right (and the group with an 
obligation) to settle the bonds before their redemption date in the event of a change in control or major asset sale, and at a premium over 
the initial notional amount. 

The key assumptions in determining the fair value are, the initial fair value of the bond (assumed to be priced at 100% on issue date), the 
credit spread (derived using Bloomberg analytics at issuance and based on credit market data thereafter), the yield curve and the 
probabilities of a change in control (20% assumed) and a major asset sale, as defined in the terms of the Holdco Notes, (0% assumed). The 
probabilities relating to change of control and major asset sale represent a reasonable expectation of those events occurring that would be 
held by a market participant. 

The fair values are categorised as level 2 in the fair valuation hierarchy of IFRS 13 and classified as current assets. 

Movement in non-deliverable forwards: 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance, as at 1 January  -     -     -     -    

Fair value changes on underlying notional value (note 10)  2,660,843   -     2,660,843   -    

Realised profits  (1,463,196)  -     (1,463,196)  -    

Balance, as at 31 December  1,197,647   -     1,197,647   -    

 
These are short term forward contracts entered into by the Group for the purchase of foreign exchange at agreed future dates. They are 
measured at fair values (marked-to-market) at each reporting period by reference to the spot exchange rate at the relevant reporting date 
with the resultant gains recognized in profit or loss under finance income. The spot exchange rate is obtained from the FMDQ OTC Securities 
Exchange which is a regulated over-the-counter fixed income securities exchange in Nigeria.  
 
The fair values are classified as current assets. 
 

20. Trade and other receivables 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Trade receivables            7,832,349   8,807,717             7,832,349   8,807,717  

Other receivables *  1,108,202   110,844   1,088,913   110,844  

Less: impairment allowance          (3,422,528)  (692,830)          (3,422,528)  (692,830) 

Net trade and other receivables  5,518,023   8,225,731   5,498,734   8,225,731  

Margins on financial derivatives ** 832,691 - 832,691 - 

Advance payments 494,376     -    494,376     -    

Prepaid expenses  43,761   91,300   46,572   81,507  

Withholding tax receivable  14,908   690,727   -     700,000  

  6,903,759   9,007,758   6,872,373   9,007,238  

* Other receivables includes ₦1.01 billion (2016: nil) relating to amounts held in bank accounts which the Group is not currently able to 
access and consequently they no longer meet the criteria of “cash and cash equivalents”. This relates to certain “post no debit” instructions 
in respect of some of our accounts, received by our banks from the Economic and Financial Crimes Commission (EFCC), with whom the 
Group is currently co-operating with in relation to certain information requests. 

To our knowledge, no formal allegation or investigation against the Group has been notified to us as part of the EFCC’s inquiries, and we 
continue to fully co-operate with the EFCC’s information requests, while working constructively with them to understand the basis of their 
actions in respect of our accounts. 
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20. Trade and other receivables (continued) 
 
As at 31 December 2017 there are also amounts of ₦1.2 billion related to derivative financial instruments and ₦832.69 million relating to 
margin deposit receivables, the cash flows for which will flow into restricted bank accounts. 

The Group currently expects that the “post no debit” on the affected accounts will be released once the EFCC’s enquiries are completed. 
It is however not possible at this time to predict the matter's likely duration or outcome. 

 

**These are initial margin deposits on the outstanding non-deliverable forward contracts purchased by the Group analyzed as follows: 
 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Gross initial margins deposited  1,319,642   -     1,319,642   -    

Margins received on settlement  (486,951)  -     (486,951)  -    

Balance, as at 31 December  832,691   -     832,691   -    

 

   The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the year is as follows: 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Balance, as at 1 January  692,830   712,920   692,830   712,920  
Impairment charges recognized (note 7)  2,729,699   562,997   2,729,699   562,997  
Impairment losses written-off  -     (579,699)  -     (579,699) 
Impairment reversals (note 9)  -     (3,388)  -     (3,388) 

Balance, as at 31 December  3,422,529   692,830   3,422,529   692,830  

 

21. Cash and cash equivalents 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Bank and cash balances  2,892,657   2,931,183   2,695,697   2,915,885  

Short term investments *  2,495,945   -     2,495,945   -    

  5,388,602   2,931,183   5,191,642  2,915,885  

* This represents investments in treasury bill securities with tenors less than 90 days. 

 
22. Share capital  

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Authorized:     

112,000,000 ordinary shares of 50k each  56,000   56,000   56,000   56,000  

Issued and fully paid:     

70,772,330 ordinary shares of 50k each  35,386   35,386   35,386   35,386  

 
Ordinary shares have a par value of 50 kobo and rank equally pari passu. They entitle the holder to one vote per share at meetings of the 
Company, to participate in dividends as declared from time to time, and to share in the proceeds of winding up the Company in proportion 
to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. 

 
23. Share premium 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance as at beginning and end of year  17,274,663   17,274,663   17,274,663   17,274,663  
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24. Borrowings  

a) Group 
 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance, as at 1 January  4,081,531   49,246,762  

Interest expense (note 11)  354,831   6,681,914  

Repayments – principal  -     (72,265,175) 

Repayments – interest  (334,331)  (7,531,984) 

Effect of changes in exchange rate   753,877   27,950,014  

Balance, as at 31 December  4,855,908   4,081,531  

 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Due within 12 months  184,919   1,393,859  

Due after 12 months  4,670,989   2,687,672  

  4,855,908   4,081,531  

This represents the outstanding $13.065 million Guaranteed Senior Notes due 2019 issued through IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG 
B.V. The facility attracts interest at an annual rate of 8.375% payable semi-annually. Principal is repayable at the maturity date (15 July 
2019). 

The Notes constitute senior unsecured obligations of IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V. and rank pari passu in right of payment with 
all existing and future indebtedness that is not subordinated in right of payment to the Notes (including the guarantee of the $120 million 
revolving credit facility of IHS Holding Limited entered on 25 August 2016, as amended (the ‘IHS Holding RCF’).  

The Notes are unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severally by IHS Towers Nigeria Limited and Tower Infrastructure Company Limited 
(the ‘‘Guarantors’’). The guarantees will rank pari passu in right of payment with all existing and future Indebtedness of each Guarantor 
that is not subordinated in right of payment to such guarantee (including each Guarantor’s guarantee of the IHS Holding RCF). 

 

25. Decommissioning and site restoration provision 

This relates to the probable obligation that the Group and Company may incur on the land in which its Towers equipment are constructed. 
The amount recognized initially is the present value of the estimate of the amount that will be required to decommission and restore the 
leased sites to the original states, discounted using the effective borrowing rate of the Group. The amount provided for each site has been 
discounted based on the respective lease terms attached to each site.  

The provisions have been created based on the decommissioning experts, estimates and management's experience of the specific 
situations. Assumptions based on the current economic environment have been made, and management believes they are a reasonable 
basis upon which to estimate the future liability.  

These estimates are reviewed regularly to take into account any material changes to the assumptions. However, actual decommissioning 
costs will ultimately depend on future market prices for the necessary decommissioning works required that will reflect market conditions 
at the relevant time.  

Furthermore, the timing of decommissioning is likely to depend on when the lease term is terminated without renewal. This, in turn, will 
depend on technological changes in local and international telecommunication industry which are inherently uncertain.  

The discount rate used in the calculation of the provision is 17% (2016: 17%). Sensitivity analysis has been performed in note 4 

The movement in the account during the year is as follows: 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance, as at 1 January  1,315,099   80,840   475,981   47,116  

Unwinding of interest (note 11)  33,162   145,158   23,599   112,433  

Additions and other changes in estimates  66,531   30,963   66,531   30,963  

One-off provision (note 7)  -     1,058,138   -     285,469  

Reversal of provisions no longer required (note 9)  (164,001)  -     (126,269)  -    

Balance, as at 31 December  1,250,791   1,315,099   439,842   475,981  

     
Due within 12 months  1,192,922   1,058,138   418,590   285,469  

Due after 12 months  57,869   256,961   21,252   190,512  

  1,250,791   1,315,099   439,842   475,981  
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26. Trade and other payables  

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Trade creditors and accruals      3,217,674   2,198,553             3,212,439   2,007,442  
Other creditors         535,690   627,776                525,987   627,776  
Withholding tax          166,539   155,557                166,539   155,557  
Value added tax         637,726   450,999                637,726   450,999  

  4,557,629   3,432,885   4,542,691   3,241,774  

 

27. Taxation 

a) The movement in the current income tax liability is as follows: 

 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance, as at 1 January  409,347   176,712   126,035   126,035  

Charge for the year (see (b) below)  454,968   293,505   25,957   -    

Payments made during the year  (281,895)  (60,870)  -     -    

Tax offsets  (2,885)  -     -     -    

Balance, as at 31 December  579,535   409,347   151,992   126,035  

 
    

 

b) Charge for the year   

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Company income tax  360,195   248,814   -   -  

Tertiary education tax  94,773   44,691   25,957   -    

Total current taxes on income  454,968  293,505 25,957     -    

Deferred taxes (see note 31) *  - (1,015,012)     -     (1,015,012)    

Total current tax on income statement  454,968   (721,507)   25,957   (1,015,012)  

* This relates to the deferred tax liability arising from day one gains recognized on related party loans received at below market rates. The 
charge is recognized directly in equity (see note 31). 

 

c) Reconciliation of effective tax  

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Loss before tax  (11,888,894)   (42,570,292)  (14,749,656)  (40,617,049) 

Tax charge at 32%      (3,804,446)  (13,622,493)          (4,719,890)  (12,997,456) 

Tax effects of:       
Expenses not subjected to tax      1,122,495   2,799,678             1,196,987   2,242,105  

Tax losses and other temporary differences      3,136,919   10,101,308             3,548,860   9,740,339  

 454,968 (721,507) 25,957 (1,015,012) 

• Provision for income tax is computed on the basis Company’s income tax rate of 30% in accordance with the provisions of 
Companies Income Tax Act. 

• Education tax represents 2% of assessable profit in accordance with the provisions of the Education Tax Act. 

• The Company has applied a tax rate of 32% (2016: 32%) which reflects the Company’s effective tax rate as a result of using 
the applicable tax rates to compute its various tax liabilities. 

 
d) Deferred tax 

The Group and Company have unrecognized net deferred tax assets amounting to ₦35.36 billion and ₦34.41 billion (2016: ₦31.21 billion 
and ₦29.67 billion) respectively arising from unutilized tax losses, unutilized capital allowances and unrealized exchange differences. No 
deferred tax asset has been recognized due to uncertainties relating to the timing and amount of future taxable profits. 
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28. Related party disclosure 

IHS Holding Limited is the ultimate parent of the Company. It holds 100% of the ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December 2017 through 
a special purpose vehicle entity IHS Netherlands NG2 B.V. It has the right to appoint the Board members and controls the day to day 
activities and major financial decisions.  

IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V. (100%) and Tower Infrastructure Company Limited (100%) are subsidiaries of IHS Towers NG 
Limited. 

IHS Nigeria Limited, INT Towers Limited, IHS Netherlands Holdco B.V. and IHS Netherlands Cooperatief U.A. are subsidiaries of IHS 
Holding Limited.  

On 23 February 2017, MTN Group exchanged its 51% interest in Nigeria Tower InterCo B.V., the parent Company of INT Towers Limited 
for an additional shareholding in IHS Holding Limited (IHS Group) ("the transaction"). As a result of the transaction, the economic interest 
of MTN Group in IHS Group increased to approximately 29% comprising class A voting shares and class B non-voting shares. The original 
IHS Group shareholders’ agreement however remains in place allowing IHS Group retain its independence as an operator. IHS Group 
has the right to decide what strategic, financial, and operational information is shared with MTN Group. The transaction also does not 
allow MTN Group appoint a board member to IHS Group. MTN Group therefore has no significant influence over the financial and operating 
policy decisions of IHS Group and consequently, MTN Nigeria Communications Limited (a subsidiary company of MTN Group) ceased to 
be a related party of the Group. 

The following transactions were carried out with related parties: 

 

a) Sale of goods and services 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Sales to MTN Nigeria Communications Limited  1,534,750  4,180,094    1,197,429  3,226,416    

Services are delivered based on the price lists in force and terms that would be available to third parties. 

 

b) Purchase of goods and services 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Purchases from MTN Nigeria Communications Limited  453  -     453  -    

Goods and services are bought on normal commercial terms and conditions. 

 

c) Year-end balances arising from expenses/recharges incurred on behalf of related parties 
 

Amounts due from: Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Tower Infrastructure Company Limited  -     -     2,851,439   6,069,909  

IHS Holding Limited  35,448   72,514   85,731   72,514  

MTN Nigeria Communications Limited * - 2,160,886 - 2,160,886 

  35,448   2,233,400   2,937,170   8,303,309  

Amounts due from related parties are repayable on demand and have been classified as current assets. 

   *Year-end balances arising from transactions with MTN Nigeria Communications Limited are presented as part of trade receivables. 

 

Amounts due to: Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

IHS Nigeria Limited  1,368,720   2,271,208   1,377,024   2,271,208  

INT Towers Limited  1,103,122   451,063   1,103,122   451,063  

IHS Netherlands Holdco B.V.  178,883   -     -     -    

IHS Netherlands Cooperatief U.A.   17,486   -     -     -    

IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V.  -     -     15,464   -    

  2,668,211   2,722,271   2,495,610   2,722,271  

Amounts due to related parties are repayable on demand and have been classified as current liabilities. 
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28. Related party disclosure (continued) 

d) Loans from related parties 

 

(i) IHS Netherlands Holdco B.V. Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance, as at 1 January  71,238,804   -     71,238,804   -    

Advanced during the year  -     72,265,175   -     72,265,175  

Transaction costs paid             (112,670)  (2,003,114)             (112,670)  (2,003,114) 

Transaction costs recharged               161,711  -               161,711  - 

Fair value of embedded derivative  -     (191,189)  -     (191,189) 

Amortised interest  7,427,875   1,286,876   7,427,875   1,286,876  

Repayments – interest  (6,979,877) -  (6,979,877) - 

Effects of changes in exchange rate  13,349,704   (118,944)  13,349,704   (118,944) 

Balance, as at 31 December  85,085,547   71,238,804   85,085,547   71,238,804  

On 27 October 2016, the Company received $236.94 million from the $800 million 9.5% Senior Notes due 2021 issued by IHS 
Netherlands Holdco B.V. The facility attracts interest at an annual interest rate of 9.5% plus a margin of 0.15% payable semi-annually. 
The principal is repayable at maturity date (27 October 2021).  

The proceeds were used to, among other things, settle principal amounts due to holders that tendered outstanding $250 million 8.375% 
Guaranteed Senior Notes due 2019 issued by IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V. $236.94 million in principal amount of the $250m 
bond was repaid on 27 October 2016. 

The Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severally on a senior basis by IHS Netherlands NG1 B.V., IHS Nigeria 

Limited, IHS Netherlands NG2 B.V., IHS Towers NG Limited, Tower Infrastructure Company Limited and IHS Towers Netherlands 

FinCo NG B.V. The Guarantees will rank equal in right of payment with all of each Guarantor’s existing and future senior indebtedness. 

Maintenance covenants of the Notes, amongst other things, restricts each of the Guarantors to: 

• incur or guarantee additional indebtedness and issue certain preferred stock; 

• make certain restricted payments and investments, including dividends or other distributions; 

• create or incur certain liens; 

• enter into agreements that restrict the ability of restricted subsidiaries to pay dividends; 

• transfer or sell certain items; 

• merge or consolidate with other entities; and 

• enter into certain transactions with affiliates. 

 

(ii) IHS Holding Limited Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance, as at 1 January  2,180,822   -     2,180,822   -    

Advanced during the year  -     5,322,027   -     5,322,027  

Fair value adjustments  -     (3,171,912)  -     (3,171,912) 

Amortised interest  207,708   36,846   207,708   36,846  

Effects of changes in exchange rate  434,721   (6,139)  434,721   (6,139) 

Balance, as at 31 December  2,823,251   2,180,822   2,823,251   2,180,822  

On 27 October 2016, the Company received $17.45 million from IHS Holding Limited. The facility has a tenor of 8 years from issue date 
and principal is repayable in full at the maturity date (26 October 2026). The proceeds were used to amongst other things, settle interest 
and premiums due to holders that tendered outstanding $250 million 8.375% Guaranteed Senior Notes due 2019 issued by IHS Towers 
Netherlands FinCo NG B.V. 

 

(iii)  IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V.  Company 

   31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
   ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance, as at 1 January    5,014,630   49,246,762  

Amortised interest    431,158   6,786,038  

Repayments – principal    -     (72,265,175) 

Repayments – interest    (353,966)  (6,704,407) 

Effects of changes in exchange rate    933,483   27,951,412  

Balance, as at 31 December    6,025,305   5,014,630  
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28. Related party disclosure (continued) 

d) Loans from related parties (continued) 

(iii) IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V. (continued) 

This represents the outstanding $13.065 million 8.375% Guaranteed Senior Notes due 2019 issued by the Group through IHS Towers 
Netherlands FinCo NG B.V. (see note 24 Borrowings). The outstanding notes attract interest at an annual interest rate of 8.375% plus 
a margin of 0.164% payable semi-annually. Principal is repayable at the maturity date (15 July 2019). 

All loans are interest bearing and are recognized at amortised costs. No loans were advanced to key management staff during the year. 

 

Summary of loan from related parties 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
Current ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

IHS Netherlands Holdco B.V.  1,468,843   1,237,717   1,469,843   1,237,717  

IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V.  -     -     188,540   159,473  

  1,468,843   1,237,717   1,658,383   1,397,190  

Non-current     

IHS Netherlands Holdco B.V.    83,615,704   70,001,087           83,615,704   70,001,087  

IHS Holding Limited      2,823,251   2,180,822             2,823,251   2,180,822  

IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V.  -     -               5,836,765   4,855,157  

  86,438,955   72,181,909   92,275,720   77,037,066  

 

e) Key management compensation 

Key management includes Directors (executive and non-executive), and the Company Secretary. There was no compensation paid or 
payable to key management for employee services in the current year. 

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Salaries and other short-term benefits  -     167,374   -     167,374  

     
 
Directors' remuneration     

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 

 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Fees and remuneration  -     140,241   -     140,241  

Other emoluments  -     27,133   -     27,133  

  -     167,374   -     167,374  

 
 
Directors remuneration disclosed includes: 
     

 Group Company 

 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 

 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Chairman  -     2,550   -     2,550  

Highest paid director  -     82,927   -     82,927  

  -     85,477   -     85,477  
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28. Related party disclosure (continued) 

e) Key management compensation (continued) 

The remuneration of all other directors fell in the ranges below: 

 Group Company 
 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 

 Number Number Number Number 

₦500,001 - ₦2,000,000  -     5   -     5  

₦2,000,001 - ₦10,000,000  -     1   -     1  

₦10,000,000 and above  -     2   -     2  

  -     8   -     8  

 

29. Cash generated from operations 
  Group Company 

 Note 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Reconciliation:      

Loss before taxation   (11,888,894)   (42,570,292)  (14,749,656)  (40,617,049) 

Adjustments:      
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 14  2,665,696   3,769,623   1,871,179   2,752,543  

Amortization of intangible assets 15  22,374   20,770   22,374   20,770  

Amortization of prepaid land rent 17  697,251   583,292   697,251   583,292  

Net impairment charge on trade receivables 20  2,729,699   559,609   2,729,699   559,609  

Write-off of withholding tax assets 7  3,062,507   6,630,476   3,062,507   6,630,476  

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 7  256,986   3,669,046   156,644   1,318,433  

Insurance claims 9 (960) (5,357) (960) (5,357) 

Impairment loss on prepaid land lease  17  43,035   68,923   43,035   68,923  

One-off decommissioning provision 7  -     1,058,138   -     285,469  

Reversal of decommissioning provision 25  (164,001)  -     (126,269)  -    

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 14  6,312   (283)  6,312   (283) 

Fair value gains on foreign exchange derivatives 10  (2,660,843)  -     (2,660,843)  -    

Interest income - bank deposits 10  (64,276)  (152,169)  (64,276)  (152,169) 

Finance costs 11  22,898,090   39,135,111   23,144,144   39,207,908  

Fair value through profit or loss 12  (3,761,192)  (3,379,640)  (3,761,192)  (3,379,640) 

Realised loss on foreign currency purchase  618,656 - 618,656 - 

   14,460,440   9,387,247   10,988,605   7,272,925  

Changes in working capital:      

Increase in inventories   (176,004)  (225,675)  (176,004)  (225,675) 

Increase in trade and other receivables net of impairment charges   (2,366,861)  (3,550,265)  (2,302,826)  (3,504,350) 

Decrease in due from related parties   47,959   69,616   3,216,146   2,247,670  

Decrease/(increase) in due to related parties   285,564   3,008,442   (64,950)  2,722,271  

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables   1,132,824   151,969   1,308,997   (575,252) 

Decrease/(increase) in working capital   (1,076,518)  (545,913)  1,981,363   664,664  

Cash generated from operations   13,383,922   8,841,334   12,969,968   7,937,589  

 

30. Net debt reconciliation 
  Group Company 

  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 
  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Cash and cash equivalents   5,388,602   2,931,183   5,191,642   2,915,885  

Borrowings - repayable within one year   (184,919)  (1,393,859)  -     -    

Related party loans - repayable within one year   (1,469,843)  (1,237,717)  (1,658,383)  (1,397,190) 

Borrowings - repayable after one year   (4,670,989)  (2,687,672)  -     -    

Related party loans - repayable after one year   (86,438,955)  (72,181,909)  (92,275,720)  (77,037,066) 

Net debt   (87,376,104)  (74,569,974)  (88,742,461)  (75,518,371) 
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30. Net debt reconciliation (continued) 

Group 
 

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

Related party 
loans 

Borrowings 
Total 

  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Net debt, beginning of the year   2,931,183   (73,419,626)        (4,081,531)   (74,569,974) 

Cash flows   2,397,932   7,092,547              334,331     9,824,810  

Foreign exchange adjustments   59,487   (13,784,425)           (753,877)   (14,478,815) 

Other non-cash movements   -     (7,797,294)           (354,831)     (8,152,125) 

Net debt, end of the year   5,388,602   (87,908,798)  (4,855,908)  (87,376,104) 

 

 

Company 
  

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

Related party 
loans Total 

   ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Net debt, beginning of the year         2,915,885       (78,434,256)   (75,518,371) 

Cash flows         2,246,238           7,446,513     9,692,751  

Foreign exchange adjustments                29,519       (14,717,908)   (14,688,389) 

Other non-cash movements                      -           (8,228,452)     (8,228,452) 

Net debt, end of the year    5,191,642   (93,934,103)  (88,742,461) 

 

 

31. Other capital reserves 

Group 
 

Related party loans 
fair value adjustment 

Foreign exchange 
translation reserve 

Share based  
payment reserve Total 

  ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Balance, as at 1 January 2016   -     -     408,794   408,794  
Other comprehensive income for the year   -     286,171   -     286,171  

Related party loan fair value adjustment   3,171,912   -     -     3,171,912  

Deferred tax (see note 27)   (1,015,012)    (1,015,012) 
Reclassification to retained earnings   -     -     (408,794)  (408,794) 

Balance, as at 31 December 2016   2,156,900   286,171   -     2,443,071  

      
Balance, as at 1 January 2017   2,156,900   286,171   -     2,443,071  
Other comprehensive income for the year   -     177,913   -     177,913  

Balance, as at 31 December 2017   2,156,900   464,084   -     2,620,984  
 
 

Company 
  

Related party loans 
fair value adjustment 

Share based  
payment reserve 

Total 

   ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Balance, as at 1 January 2016    -     408,794   408,794  

Related party loan fair value adjustment    3,171,912   -     3,171,912  

Deferred tax (see note 27)    (1,015,012)  -     (1,015,012) 
Reclassification to retained earnings    -     (408,794)  (408,794) 

Balance, as at 31 December 2016    2,156,900   -     2,156,900  

      
Balance, as at 1 January 2017    2,156,900   -     2,156,900  
Other comprehensive income for the year    -     -     -    

Balance, as at 31 December 2017    2,156,900   -     2,156,900  

 

Related party loans fair value gain 

It is a non-distributable reserve which relates to the difference between the fair value and actual proceed of related party loans. 

 

Foreign exchange translation reserve 

It is a non-distributable reserve that harbors the exchange movement in the translation of IHS Towers Netherlands FinCo NG B.V. which is 
a foreign subsidiary. 
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31. Other capital reserves (continued) 

Share based payment reserve 

It is a non-distributable reserve which relates to the share option plan for former key management staff of the Company. Awards of shares 
of Helios Towers Mauritius Holdings Limited are granted under the plan in the form of conditional rights to receive shares on fulfilment of 
performance obligations set. No payment is made for awards.  

In 2016, all outstanding obligations settled by the former shareholders (Helios Towers Plc) and the balance in the reserve written back to 
retained earnings. 

 

32. Events after reporting date 

There are no events after the reporting date that need to be disclosed in accordance with IAS 10 Events after the reporting period. 

 

33. Contingent liabilities and capital commitments 

There are law suits pending against the Company in various courts of law. The law suits are being handled by external counsel. The 
contingent liabilities in respect of litigations and claims amounted to ₦1.15 billion (2016: ₦459.42 million). Based on legal advice received, 
the Directors are of the view that the Company's liability is not likely to crystallize, thus no provisions have been made in these financial 
statements. 

The Group and Company were committed to the supply of property, plant and equipment of about ₦235.86 million (2016: Nil) as at the 
reporting date. 

 

34. Changes in presentation 

Changes were made to the presentation of certain items in the financial statements for prior year to enhance the inter-period comparability 
of information. Details of the changes are as shown below: 

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 

Group 2016 
  

Prior 
presentation Reclassification * 

Current 
presentation 

   ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Cost of sales   12,004,270        3,737,969   15,742,239 

Administrative expenses         14,726,627  (3,737,969)    10,988,658  

    26,730,897  -   26,730,897 

 

Company 2016 
  

Prior 
presentation Reclassification * 

Current 
presentation 

   ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 

Cost of sales   9,132,169        1,387,356   10,519,525 

Administrative expenses         11,331,300  (1,387,356)    9,943,944  

    20,463,469  -   20,463,469 

 

* This represents the sum of impairment charges on property plant and equipment (Group: ₦3.67 billion, Company ₦1.32 billion) and prepaid 
land lease (Group and Company ₦68.92 million) previously classified as administrative expenses. These impairment charges relate to 
towers, tower equipment, and unexpired leases on non-live sites which were earmarked for decommissioning. The impaired assets are core 
to the business operations of the Group and directly attributable to revenues generated. As a result, impairment charges on these assets 
have been classified as cost of sales in the current year.  
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Statement of Value Added  
 

Group 31-Dec-17  31-Dec-16  
  ₦'000    ₦'000   
Revenue  22,892,169    19,706,993   
Other income  360,485    9,028   
Finance income  2,762,626    152,169   

  26,015,280    19,868,190   

Purchase of goods and services (All local)  (26,202,085)   (22,536,685)  

Value added  (186,805)    (2,668,495)  

     

Distribution     

     

 31-Dec-17  31-Dec-16  

Employees   ₦'000  %  ₦'000  % 

Salaries and benefits   1,023,605  (548)   2,053,196   (77) 

     

Provider of funds      

Interest   7,990,414  (4,277)   34,058,208  
 

(1,276) 

     

Government      
Taxation   454,968  (244)   (721,507)  27  

     

Retained for the future      

Replacement of PPE  2,665,696  
 

(1,427)   3,769,623   (141) 

Replacement of intangible asset  22,374   (12)   20,770   (1) 

Reserves  (12,343,862)   6,608   (41,848,785)  1,568  

  (186,805)   100   (2,668,495)  100  

 

Company 31-Dec-17  31-Dec-16  
  ₦'000    ₦'000   
Revenue  17,519,750    15,465,605   
Other income  127,229    9,028   
Finance income  2,762,626    152,169   

  20,409,605    15,626,802   

Purchase of goods and services (All local)  (24,175,362)   (13,899,866)  

Value added  (3,765,757)    1,726,936   

     

Distribution     

     

 31-Dec-17  31-Dec-16  

Employees   ₦'000  %  ₦'000  % 

Salaries and benefits   1,023,605   (27)   2,053,196   119  

     

Provider of funds      
Interest   8,066,741  (214)   35,487,452   2,055  

     

Government      
Taxation   25,957   (1)   1,015,012   59  

     

Retained for the future      
Replacement of PPE  1,871,179   (50)   2,752,543   159  

Replacement of intangible asset  22,374   (1)   20,770   1  

Reserves  (14,775,613)   393  (39,602,037) (2,293) 

  (3,765,757)   100   1,726,936   100  
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Financial Summary  
 

 

Group 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Revenue  22,892,169   19,706,993   14,676,436   11,462,974  15,359,541  

      
Results from operating activities  8,246,570   (3,587,350)  5,972,378   695,076   7,634,050  
Net finance expense  (20,135,464)  (38,982,942)  (8,010,049)  (14,339,202)  (4,864,322) 

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation  (11,888,894)   (42,570,292)  (2,037,671)  (13,644,126)  2,769,728  

Taxation  (454,968)  721,507   (97,072)  (523,300)  (195,058) 

Profit/(loss) for the year  (12,343,862)   (41,848,785)  (2,134,743)  (14,167,426)  2,574,670  

      
Assets employed:      
Non-current assets  22,562,883   19,932,603   31,172,094   32,025,717   33,256,861  
Current assets  14,720,658   13,076,774   11,555,391   6,318,379   5,837,463  

Total assets  37,283,541   33,009,377   42,727,485   38,344,096   39,094,324  

      
Financed by:      
Equity  (64,537,331)  (52,371,382)  (12,965,668)  (10,830,925)  3,336,501  

Non-current liabilities  91,167,813   75,126,542   50,401,548   45,119,866   23,195,174  

Current liabilities  10,653,059   10,254,217   5,291,605   4,055,155   12,562,649  

Total equity and liabilities  37,283,541   33,009,377   42,727,485   38,344,096   39,094,324  

 

 

Company 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 
 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 ₦'000 
Revenue  17,519,750   15,465,605   11,732,491   9,350,884   14,743,129  

      
Results from operating activities  5,631,862   (1,561,310)  6,623,943   1,403,207   7,964,401  
Net finance expense  (20,381,518)  (39,055,739)  (8,082,842)  (14,208,694)  (4,864,322) 

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation  (14,749,656)  (40,617,049)  (1,458,899)  (12,805,487)  3,100,079  

Taxation  (25,957)  1,015,012   -     (523,300)  (195,058) 

(Loss)/profit for the year  (14,775,613)  (39,602,037)  (1,458,899)  (13,328,787)  2,905,021  

      
Assets employed:      
Non-current assets  20,698,112   17,172,973   25,091,166   26,688,650   26,901,874  
Current assets  17,394,034   19,130,865   19,802,354   13,160,053   12,522,801  

Total assets  38,092,146   36,303,838   44,893,520   39,848,703   39,424,675  

      
Financed by:      
Equity  (63,472,092)  (48,696,479)  (11,251,342)  (9,792,443)  3,666,852  

Non-current liabilities  92,296,972   77,227,578   50,367,824   45,119,866   23,195,174  

Current liabilities  9,267,266   7,772,739   5,777,038   4,521,280   12,562,649  

Total equity and liabilities  38,092,146   36,303,838   44,893,520   39,848,703   39,424,675  
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